SPRING 1967 VOLUME LVI NUMBER 2



The GEAR of THETA TAU

#### THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL.

has authorized a formal plan for

## VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS TO THETA TAU FRATERNITY

by its alumni and other interested persons. These contributions may be by periodic or occasional gifts or bequests.

Specifically, persons may contribute to a "Founders' Memortal Fund" or give "unrestricted gifts." Funds contributed to the Founders' Memortal Fund are to be invested in securities (stocks, bonds, and mortgages) with preference to be given to loans to Theta Tau house corporations for the purpose of building, buying, remodeling, or furnishing chapter houses. One-half of the return on invested funds will be reinvested, and the other one-half will be used as directed by the Trustees (Executive Council). These gifts are not deductible for income tax purposes. Unrestricted gifts will be used in the operation or promotion of Theta Tau Fraternity as directed by the Trustees.

No minimum amount has been set, and all gifts are welcome. The form on page 60 is provided for those interested.

## BEQUESTS TO THETA TAU

Bequests to Theta Tau may be made using the following suggested form:

"I give, devise, and bequeath to Theta Tau, national professional negineering fraternity, with its Central Office located at 13 Sona Lane, St. Louis, Missouri 63141, \$ (or 'the following described property, or securities'), as an unrestricted gift (or 'as a contribution to its Founders' Memorial Fund')."



# The Gear of Theta Tau

**SPRING 1967** 

VOLUME LVI NUMBER 2

## Board of Editors

WILLIAM E. FRANKLIN, Editor-in-Chief J. W. Howe

## Contents

The William Murray Lewis Convention	- 4
Anthony Filip is Outstanding Delegate	10
New Additions to Our Library	10
Grand Regent's Message	- 11
The New Executive Council	15
Dream of a Chapter House	10
College Bowl Experiences	- 15
Contributors to Theta Tau Progress	16
Alumni News	17
Dr. Van Pelt Retires at Michigan Tech	17
Dr. Martin is New Dean at SMU	18
Distinguished Career in Construction for Strike	15
Wormser and Smith Honored by Columbia	20
Pittinger Heads Shell Pipe Line Company	2
Dr. Spalding Receives Award; Leave of Absence	2
Cervenka is President of ASTME	2
In Memoriam	2
25 and 50 Years Ago in Theta Tau	2
Alumni Notes	- 91
Letters to the Editor	4
Chapter News	43
Additions to Membership	50
Theta Tau Directory	53

Cover. C. Rawood Haws was elected Groud Regent of Theta Tau at the William Murray Levist Concention Heal last December in Monacoptal, Monacota. Photo Ceedits: Fage 3, Alpha Chapter, page 5, Jay N. Thorse, page 6, Alpha Chapter, page 7, Alpha Chapter and Jay N. Thorse, page 6, Hay N. Thorse, Chapter, page 70, Alpha Chapter and Jay N. Thorse, page 8, Jay N. Thorse, McMagon Technological University, page 18, Comin; page 19, Fabius Bathrich, page 20, Columbia University; page 23, Fabius Bath-

The Gase is the official published and the Tax. national performant empiriciple fracturity. It is published the and spring. The empiriciple for the published the surface of Perstand's interest and is next at no cert to shown above follows are on record at Tax Gaze office. • Send change of address, relieval, and business correspondence with Editorial Conference of the Co

# The William Murray Lewis Convention

The Twenty-Sixth Biennial Convention opposed on the heels of a fresh winter snow-storm in Minneapolis on Tuesday, December 27. On hand at the Normandy Motor Hotel was one of the largest and most entusisatic groups of student members to attend in the past several years, including a delegation of 16 men from Omega Chapter. The high spirits carried throughout the three-day event, when most of the nearly 100 students and alumni returned home wears but rewarded for their experience.

Amid the hubbub of registration, preparing special chapter displays, and examination by the Credentials Committee, the members became acquainted. Grand Regent William K. Rey had appointed committees in advance so that each delegate and alternate was soon engaged in the work of his committee. The 18 committees met in the afternoon and far into the night. The Executive Council managed to meet past midnight for all three ingibts also.

Founder William M. Lewis was present and served admirably as the elder statesman. Also present was Past Grand Regent Richard J. Russell, who had served on the Executive Council during the 1920s. Both of these men were an inspiration to the deleates, officers, and guests present.

The first evening was highlighted by a dinner open to all members and their ladies. It was here that official welcomes were extended by Minneapolis, Alpha Chapter, and the Twin Cities Alumni Association. Grand Vice Regent C. Ramond Hanes capped off the evening by giving the keynote address of the Convention. He stressed the professional nature of Theta Tau and set the stage for the events which were to follow.

### First Session

The first Convention Session was held on Tuesday evening. National officers and Regional Directors made their reports, after

which the committees met far into the

December 28 was a day of varied activity for all present. The morning session opened with a Ritual Workshop conducted by George Dodd, chairman of the Ritual Revision Committee. He provided many helpful suggestions for making the initiation ritual a meaningful experience for each member.

The entire group then boarded buses for a tour of the University of Minnesota and of the Alpha Chapter house located nearby. The snow which had fallen made an impressive backfrop for this event, and the bus tour gave everyone a brief visit to one of the nations best universities.

After luncheon Executive Secretary Robert E. Pope conducted a Chapter Officer Workshop for all delegates, alternates, and visitors. He pointed out many ways that each chapter could conduct its operations most effectively and benefit from services of the Central Office.

By midaftermoon the first committees were ready to report and for the next two days there would be reports, debate, and action as each committee brought its recommendations to the floor of the Convention. Wednesday's sessions were closed by a memorial service to honor those members of Theta Tau whose deaths had been reported since the previous Convention. Dinper was informal and was concluded by informal discussion among the members.

Thursday was a full work day and saw an outpouring of reports and Convention action. Even the luncheon was an occasion for work. The delegates of each Region were served in different rooms. Here the men had a chance to air their chapters' problems with each other and with national officers from their areas.

The afternoon was spent with the delegates attempting to dispatch with a number of committee reports and proposals. Two items stirred a good deal of interest and



James W. Fariey, president of the Twin Cities Alumni Association, extends a welcome at the opening dinner.



Les Sutherland, Delta Beta delegate, gave a slide presentation at the Wednesday dinner.



A welcome banner greeted the delegates in the lobby of the Normandy Motor Inn.





#### OFFICIAL CONVENTION PHOTOGRAPH

Front rose: Milton S. Wunderlich, Archivist: Charles W. Britzins, Grand Treasurer: C. Ramond Hanes, Grand Vice Regent; William M. Lewis, Founder; Richard J. Russell, Past Grand Regent; William K. Rey, Grand Regent; Robert E. Pope, Grand Scribe; Richard Lynch, Grand Marshal; Charles E. Wales, Grand Inner Guard; Jay N. Thorpe, Grand Outer Guard. Second rose: Jeff Brann, Zeta; Myrl R. Wear, Zeta; William S. Weber, Xi; Lewis J. Zackin, Theta; Jess L. Solomon, Jota Beta; Bruce W. Farmer, Chi; Robert M. Webb, Kappa Beta; Rick Avis, Gamma. Third row: Lester E. Sutherland, Delta Beta; Joel S. Schwartz, Delta Beta; Terry Angove, Pair Wayne F. Niskala, Delta; David R. Woolsey, Zeta; Gary L. Nereson, Alpha; John M. Dealy, Eastern Regional Director. Fourth row: Carl Gibbons, Upsilon; Jack Payne, Special Representative for California; James B. Deters, Omega; Edward A. Nordquist, Psi; Anthony E. Filip, Epsilon Beta; Michael P. Murray, Delta, Fifth rose: Charles Weniger, Iota; Terry E. Klitzkie, Xi; Steven J. Parker, Omega; Richter F. Kinnune, Epsilon; Richard T. Brown, Lambda; Charles L. Anderson, Alpha; Craig A. Franc, Alpha. Sixth rose: Thomas R. Draeger, Theta Beta; George G. Dodd, Central Regional Director; Brian J. Boland, Pi; Keith A. Christophersen, Alpha; James Cole Winkler, Xi; William R. Reed, Phi; James M. Walter, Phi, Seventh rose: Craig Herdman, Omieron; Thomas Costilow, Delta Beta; Fred Emerson, Theta Beta; James Suarez, Tau; Richard H. Simons, Lambda; J. Ronald Bailey, Rho. Eighth rose: Dwight D. Zeck, Xi; Alan R. Wolfle. Theta Beta; Thomas D. Peterson, Alpha; Brewerton Clarke, Tau; Clifford E. Anderson, Chi; Roger A. Hall, Mu. Ninth row: Jon Schladweiler, Xi; George Kent Burnett, Upsilon; Robert Roger A. Franklin, Theta Beta; Robert G. Smith, Sigmu; Ronald A. Schwartz, Sigmu; Gregory J. Bay-ens, Delta Beta. Tenth row: Bandy G. Murphy, Upsilon; Phillip Dolezal, Eta Beta; Andrew Steep Deming, Camma Beta; William J. Dandhildes, Sigmu; Larry Pauly, Sigmu; Paul L. Sak, Iota Beta; Arthur Casabianca, Theta.

debate. The first was a proposal to modify the Fraternity's policy that new chapters can be established only at schools with ECPD-accredited curricula. A proposal was made that the Executive Council be granted the right to waive this provision under certain exceptional circumstances. The debate was lengthy and vigorous but the proposition was not settled that afternoon.

The second controversial item was the proposed budget for the 1966-68 fiscal biennium. After much background work and careful analysis, the committee recommended a budget which showed a \$3,000



John Dealy, Regional Director, was master of ceremonies at the Wednesday luncheon.



Grand Regent Rey, Grand Marshal Lynch, and Founder Lowis at one of the many late Executive Council meetings.



James Reynolds, Regional Director, did an outstanding job on the Convention Planning Committee and the Auditing Committee.



Grand Treasurer Britzins, Grand Vice Regent Hanes, and Grand Inner Guard Wales during a meeting of the Executive Council.

deficit. The chapter delegates then made a swift and rather surprising decision to ratie their own initiation foes and semiannual dues to cover the anticipated deficit. After debate and several calculations the delegates finally voted to increase initiation fees by \$2.00 and semi-annual dues by \$0.50 per max.

Other important legislation was taken up, but perhaps the sleeper was a provision that the position of Field Secretary be established, looking to the day when a second full time employee of the Fraternity would be needed.

## Initiation and Banquet

The afternoon ended when a special team of delegates presented a full scale initiation ceremony in an exemplary fashion for all present. This event was followed by a reception and the Convention Banquet held to pay tribute to our sixty-two years as well as the recent accomplishments in Theta Tau.

About 35 Twin Cities alumni turned up for the event and pushed attendance to well over 160, probably the most well attended Convention Banquet in 12 years. (The Golden Anniversary Banquet was also held in Minnearolis.)

The program was varied and a pleasure to all present. Grand Regent Rey acted as master of ceremonies and read many telegrams from Founders and Past Grand Regents unable to attend the Convention.

First speaker of the evening was Founder Lewis, whose enthusiasm and dedication had been an inspiration to all who attended the Convention. He delighted his andience with recollections of his early years in Theta Tau and personal anecdotes of his active retirement. Brother Lewis received a standing ovation from his brothers.

Past Grand Regent Richard Russell then took up the speakers' stand and skillfully intertwined a serious message with his recollections of Theta Tau in the 1920s. Brother Russell stressed the fact that Theta Tau found its strength in being a professional engineering fratemity and filling a gap between honor societies and social fraternities. He urged the student members present to renew their dedication to the Fraternity's principles and without sacrificing the professional stature which we now enjoy.

Past Grand Regent C. W. Britzius also spoke briefly. He chose to honor Theta Tau with a personal testimony of the Fraternity's importance in his life and professional career. Brother Britzius' enthusiasm and vigor have always given the impression of a person with the secret of perpetual youth. That night was no exception.



Founder William M. Lewis delighted the audience at the Convention Banquet. Lynn Hindermann, Minnesota '29, who gave the main address, is at left.

Turning to awards, Brother Lewis was presented with a Citation for distinguished service to the Fraternity, an honor reserved to only a very few members. This action was topped off the next day when the Convention was named the William Murray Lewis Convention by official action of the voting delegates and Executive Council.

Clarles Wales then presented the Erich J. Schrader Award to the chapter which had proved itself the best in Theta Tau for the biennium. Phi Chapter at Purdue walded away with the honors for the second time in a row. Sigma Chapter (Ohio State) of Egistion Beta (Wayne State) came in second and third by narrow margins.



Jim Walter, Phi Chapter, receives the Erich J. Schrader Award from Charles E. Wales, chairman of the Award Committee.



Executive Secretary Robert E. Pope conducts the Chapter Officers Workshop.



Grand Treasurer Charles W. Britzius recall his experiences in Theta Tau over the year-



Alpha alumni led the group singing: C. W. Britzius, Lynn Hindermann, Gary Lamont, Herman Gollwitzer, and Philip Ratte.



Charlie Anderson, Alpha Chapter Vice Regent, was a hard working Host Committee member in the Theta Tau Convention "office,"



Grand Scribe Robert E. Pope (Outstanding Delegate at the Golden Anniversary Convention) presents the current award to Anthony Filip, Epsilon Beta Chapter.



Past Grand Regent Richard Russell was an active participant in the Convention.



The new Executive Council takes office, From left; George G. Dodd, Grand Outer Guard; Richard Lynch, Grand Marchall, Joy N. Thorpe, Grand Indeer Guard; Robert E. Pope, Grand Sorber, Charles W. Richtins, Grand Tresurer; William K. Rey, Delegate-at-Large; Charles E. Wales, Grand Vice Regent; and C. Ramond Hance, Grand Regent.

Grand Scribe Pope then made the Outstanding Delegate Award. This honor: a bestowed on the chapter delegate who is joudged to be the most outstanding at the Convention—the selection is made by secret ballot by the delegate themselves. Brother Tony Filip (Wayne State) took this honor, being the twelfith man to do so in Theta Tau history (see page 10). He was chairman of the Convention Planning Committee and very active during floor delate and discussion.

Guest speaker of the evening was Brother Lynn Hindermann, Minnesota '29, North Central regional engineer for the Asphalt Institute. His subject, 'The Edge of Tomorrow," was directed primarily at the student engineers present as he looked at the engineer of the future. He emphasized that an engineer is someone determined to master the forces of nature for the benefit of mankind. Beyond this, however, there are opportunities which the engineer will need to pursue-to develop his competence as a professional, to exercise civic responsibilities, and to bring his authority and influence to bear on problems of mankind, bethey technical, social, or political. He should not only be the solid citizen he has always been but an active citizen with a broad image of his purpose.

#### Final Session

Friday brought the seventh and final Convention Session, during which the business of the Convention was brought to a close. After adoption of the traditional resolutions, the final action was election of the Executive Council for the coming biennium. The Nominations Committee brought forth its report and the slate of nominees. and the election was carried out. Grand Regent Rev became Delegate-at-Large and C. Ramond Hanes is the new Grand Regent. Other officers elected were Charles E. Wales, Grand Vice Regent: Robert E. Pope, Grand Scribe: Charles W. Britzins. Grand Treasurer, Richard Lynch, Grand Marshal; Jay N. Thorpe, Grand Inner Guard; and George G. Dodd, Grand Outer Guard.

After the installation of officers, Brother Hanes closed the Convention as his first official act. The delegates and national officers were soon scattered far from Minneapolis, weary but happy they had come to experience firsthand the fraternal fellowship of a Theat Tau Convention.

## Significant Actions Taken at the Convention

- \* Made provision for a Field Secretary to be added to the staff.
- \* Adopted a record budget of \$71,000 for the biennium.
- \* Raised initiation fees \$2.00 and semiannual dues \$0.50 to keep a black ink budget.
- \* Adopted an official Colony Certification Ritual.
- \* Revised the scoring and requirements of the Erich J. Schrader Award, emphasizing categories of "professional, brotherhood, and operations and communications."
- \* Established policy for professional auditing of the financial records of the Fraternity.
- \* Liberalized the financial allowances for Regional Conferences to encourage more participation from each Chapter. Set the dates for all Conferences during November 1967.
- \*Emphasized the increasing activity and importance of alumni activity and organizations, professional development programs, and extension to other campuses.

# Anthony Filip is Outstanding Delegate

By vote of his fellow delegates, Anthony Filip, Epsilon Beta, was elected Outstanding Delegate to the Twenty-Sixth Biennial Convention. He served as chairman of the Convention Planning Committee.

He received his B.S.E.E. degree from Wayne State University in March 1967 and is now a graduate student there. He works



Tony Filip, Epsilon Beta delegate, entered actively into debate from the Convention floor.

part-time as an assistant in the Physical Electronics Department of Ford Scientific Research Laboratories. He is presently working in holography research, which involves laser research also. Brother Filip plans to work for a Ph.D. in electrical engineering, specializing in fields and communication theory.

munication theory,
While an undergraduate Brother Filip
held scholarships from the Bentley Foundation, the Bornan Foundation, and Detroit
Edison Company. In 1964 he received the
Allinon Award for having the highest sophomore grades in the College of Engineering,
and in 1966 he had the highest senior average in engineering. He was on the Dean's
Honor List for 10 quarters.

Brother Filip has served as corresponding secretary of Epsilon Beta Chapter and was vice president of Tan Beta Pi, vice chairman of IEEE, and corresponding secretary of Eta Kappa Nu.

He has worked as a keypunch operator at the National Bank of Detroit, as a computer programmer for Wayne State, and as a student engineer for Detroit Edison Company before taking his present job.

Brother Filip's chief hobby is sailing, and he is eagerly awaiting spring.

# New Additions to Our Library

Since November 1966 the following books have been added to the Theta Tau library in the Central Office:

Congriff, Robert L.—Nonlinear Control Systems Crede, Charles E.—Vibration & Shock Isola-

tion; Shock & Vibration Handbook (3 volumes) Heylin, Gordon S.—The President's Mesunze

Heylin, Gordon S.—The President's Message Kirkpatrick, C. V.—The Fours of Gas Mattson, Roy H.—Basic Junction Devices &

Circuits; Electronics

Michalee, George W.—Precision Gearing: Theory and Practice

Palmer, Anbrey E. (and Arges) Mechanics of Materials

Swemon, G. W., Jr.—Principles of Modern Acoustics Uren, Lester C.—Petroleum Production Engi-

If you have authored or edited a book, or know of a Theta Tau who has, please notify the Central Office so that we may continue to build our library.

neering (3 volumes)

# Grand Regent's Message

It is with an increasing feeling of humility that I embark on the office of Grand Regent of Theta Tau. When I take a quick look at the ones who have preceded me in this office and their accomplishments. I realize it will be difficult to stand up favorably by comparison in the history of Theta Tau. From our Founder, Erich J. Shrader, through the various administrations to that of immediate Past Grand Regent William K. Bey, all have contributed significantly to our protree.

In seeking a formula for the success of each of these administrations it would seem to be the quality of adapting to the need of the times and recognizing the constantly changing conditions which must be faced and doing something about them. While I am not one to dwell in the past except as it may be useful in our future, the pace for changing conditions parallels that of the increase in man's knowledge and along with it the increase in numbers of engineers (or perhaps this should be reversed). Since this is at such a tremendously increasing pace during recent years, the need to adapt our Fraternity to changing conditions likewise is at an accelerated pace compared to some periods in our past history.

Education in general and engineering education in particular are in the midst of a radically changing concept. There is much evidence that students are increasing their emphasis on academic activities and lessening their attention to extracurricular matters. This does not mean, however, that fraternities in general are heading to oblivion since the records show a dynamic increase in the national fraternity system since World War II. It is pleasing to reflect that Theta Tau has kept pace with this trend in expansion. The significant step taken a few years ago during the administration of Past Grand Regent Charles W. Britzius in establishing the office of Executive Secretary is an indication of one of the significant steps taken by Theta Tau in recognizing the need for a change in our operation. Grand Scribe

Robert E. Pope has filled this position with dedication and distinction in providing services to our Fraternity.

Growth in numbers can be misleading if that is our only interest. We must continue to be alert to the steps we should be taking to insure the continued success of Theta Tau. We can't afford to wait until the time when action must be taken, which is apparent to a majority of our membership. Neither can we hope to provide an orderly study of our needs in connection with a Blennial Convention. For this reason the Executive Council, in their meeting following the Minneapolis Convention, asked Past Crand Regent William K. Rey to be chairman of a Long Range Planning Committee.

While all of the items to which this committee must give attention have not been defined, it is obvious they must first be concerned with the goals of Theta Tau and our objectives. How do we reach these goals? What is our plan or strategy in attaining our objectives? How should our Central Office develop in staff, facilities and timing? How should funds be provided for our needs? Should a Development Program be established to which continuing contributions are made? What are our plans for bringing about real alumni participation? How can our chapters be helped to strengthen themselves? What is our role in professional development?

In all of these considerations we must keep in mind that the paramount purpose is to achieve the strongest possible chapters. And it is increasingly obvious that the basic purpose which has guided our destinies throughout our history do not need to be revised—to develop and maintain a high standard of professional interest among our members and to unite them in a strong bond of fraternal fellowship.

We solicit your advice and recommendations in achieving our common purpose an increasingly greater and more effective. Theta Tau as we approach the twenty-first

# The New Executive Council



GRAND REGENT C. RAMOND HANDS, Ohio State 24, began his service to Theta Tau as president of the Engineers Clab, which achieved a charter as Sigma Chapter. At the national level he has been Regional Director, Grand Inner Guard, and Grand Vice Regent. He is an engineer for research and development with the Ohio Department of Highways in Columbus. He has promoted the engineering profession as president of the Ohio Society of Professional Engineers and as tice president of NSPE. His other memberships and activities include Tau Beta Pl, ASCE, American Road Builders Association of State Highway Officials, Columbus Engineers Club, Masonici orders, and the Methodist Church. He and his wife have two cluddren and several grandchildren.

GRAND VICE REGENT Dr. CRARLES E. WALES, Wayne State '53, is a sistant professor of chemical engineering at Purdue University, where he earned his Ph.D. in 1965. He has served Theta Tau as a charter member of Epsilon Beta Chapter, as Grand Inner Guard, Grand Outer Guard, and as chairman of several committees, including Curricular Eligibility and Schrader Award. Brother Wales served in the Marine Corps before entering Wayne State. He earned his master's degree in chemical engineering at the University of Michigan. He is a registered professional engineer in Michigan, and a member of AIChE, ASEE, Sigma Xi, Tan Beta Pi, and Omicron Delta Kappa. His hobbies include creek walking, pike fishing, and model raifranding.





GRAND SCRIBE ROBERT E. POIT, Kansas '32, serves Theta Tan full time as Executive Secretary at the Central Office in St. Louis. He has been Grand Serble of Theta Tan since 1956 and has been employed full time by the Fraternity since 1959. He was previously employed as a chemical engineer by Mallinckrodt Chemical Works in St. Louis. Brother Pope is a member of Sigma Tan, Tan Beta Pi, Phi Lambak Upstion, and Omicron Delta Kappas. He is an associate member of AIChE, a senior member of the American Chemical Society, and a member of the Engineers Club of St. Louis. Brother Pope is currently treasurer of the Professional Interfraternity Conference. His other interests include serving as a steward of Grace Methodst Church, sports, and photography.

GRAND TREASURER CIGURES W. BETTERS, Minneapte 32, has served Theta Tan as Grand Regent, Grand Vice Regent, and Grand Outer Guard. He is president of Twin City Testing and Engineering Laboratory, Inc., and Soil Explore the Company, St. Paul, Minnesota. His activities include servicina pany, St. Paul, Minnesota Description of the Company of the Compan





GRAND MARSHAL Richano Lyxcat, Wajne State '53, is vice president and secretary of Freeman-Darling Inc. in Detroit, Michigan. He is a charter member of Epalion Beta Chapter, and has been active in member of Epalion Beta Chapter, and has been active in the second of the control of the served Theta Tau on the national level as Grand luner Guard before his election as Grand Marshal in 1958. Brother Lyuch is a member of ASCE, the Engineering Society of Detroit, and is a registered professional engineer in Michigan. His hobbies include bowling, golfring, and skiing. Brother Lynch was married recently.

GRAND INNER GUARD JAY N. Thomer, Utah '57, is a research engineer for the Boeing Company in Seattle, Washington. He lives in Bellevue, Washington with his family, which includes his wife, two daughters, and a son. Brother Thorpe has previously served Theta Tau as a Regional Director and as Grand Outer Guard. He has been active in the Pacific Northwest Alumni Association and was instrumental in the establishment of Zeta Beta and Theta Beta Chapters. He is a member of Alpha Phi Omega. Brother Thorpe served in the Navy in World War II in all theaters of action and was recalled into service in Korea in 1950.





GRAND OUTER GUARD Dr. CRONGE G. Dogs. Kansan '80, is a senior research engineer at Ceneral Motors Research Laboratories, Warren, Michigan. He earned his Ph.D. in electrical engineering at the University of Illinois in 1964. Brother Dodd has served Theta Tau as Regional Director and as chairman of interim committees. He is a member of NSPE, IEEE, and the Association of Computing Machinery. His honor societies include Sigma Xi. Tau Beta Pl., Eta Kappa Nu, Sigma Pi Sigma, and Sigma Tau. He is active in the Episcopal Church and is a member of Masonic orders. Brother Dodd is married and has two daughtest. His holdies include Brign and bowling.

## Dream of a Chapter House

by Allan H. Kopp, Tau '67

The dream of a Tau chapter house on the Syracuse University campus has been one that has fantalized the members of our Chapter for over 42 years. But dreams rarely come true by themselves, and only after much hard work, organization, and determination have been expended can their fulfillment be realized.

The first real efforts to obtain a chapter house began in 1962 with brothers Lee Metrick and Peter Vandenburg. An analysis of the situation for housing on the Syracuse campus revealed that purchase of our own house outright would be virtually impossible because of the lack of available land reasonably close to the campus. An idea of renting an entire house or forming a co-op was also considered, but this was dropped on the grounds of insufficient space and/or lack of funds to assume responsibilities. The solution finally reached was that of living together in a university cottage. This meant that we would be tenants of the university, eating in a nearby dormitory and paying the regular room and board fee, while still living together in an individual unit exclusively for our use (provided we could fill it with a certain minimum number set by the school). No responsibility, no extra cost, and no long hikes to 8:00 classes. All we needed was enough brothers to move in, a cottage the university would let us have, and a place that would be acceptable to all the brothers. In 1962 Tau Chapter had only the brothers, and the petition for a chanter house was not granted.

In 1963 and 1964 efforts to find a house, petition with enough brothers, and then accept the accepted petition continued lost in a moddle of poor organization, fouled communications, and bad timing. Further, rushing and pledging activities slacked, so that in June of 1965 half the Fratemity graduated leaving a total membership of nine.

Without enough brothers all hopes of a chapter house were dropped and an all-out effort to expand membership and improve the Fraternity internally was begun.

By June of 1966 things were looking better and in the fall a committee was formed to restudy the possibilities of obtaining a house. An acute shortage of hous-



Tau Chapter now occupies a university cottage near the Syracuse eampus.

ing had forced the university to purchase an excessive number of cottages that fall, which would be vacant by spring of 1967. Private informal talks with various administrative personnel indicated very good chances of house acquisition provided we could produce 13 brothers that could move in. A calculated gamble was made and engineering students that fall were rushed on the promise of a chapter house in spring. Though this promise was never clearly made in writing or otherwise, the inference was in the sushing letter and in the brothers' conversation at the rushing smoker. Pledge

class enthusiasm was tremendous, and what's more, it spread throughout the Fraternity.

Another committee was formed to inspect all the known cottages on carpus, a petition was submitted on time, letters of recommendation were secured from engineering faculty, and as a result, the petition was granted, but for a house we had not requested at 70°T Livingston Avenue.

The house to anyone but a brother of Tau Chapter at that time would seem like just another cottage which needed work inside and out, but for us it was the possible realization of a 42-year-old dream. Fourteen brothers could move in, and we needed 13 to accept the administration's offer and exchange their new, highly sought for, luxurious dormitory rooms for hard work in an old cottage.

The enthusiasm still held though, and with a decision to work together to make a real chapter house from this neglected structure, 13 signed the petition and Tau Chapter finally had its own house on January 8, 1987.

## College Bowl Experiences

by Steven Ross, Theta '68

In the spring of 1996 an advertisement appeared in the Columbia Spectator calling for all those who would like to appear on the General Electric College Book 10 try out for the team. After a written test, the 75 original applicants were cut to 16. In a month, after four round-robins had been held, the four team members were chosen. To my infinite delight, I was one of them.

The Public Relations office at Columbia U, which chose the team, decided to have four [acks-of-all-trades, masters-of-none (well, hardly any). This proved to be a wise idea, because had they chosen four specialists, there would have been some questions that would have been some questions that would have allen between our various stools. As it was, I was amazed week after week that if there was something that I did not know, somebody else on the team did.

After practicing from the beginning of the fall semester, we went on the air for the first time on November 6. Our first opponent was Providence College, with whom we ran practice games all morning. By the time that we went before the cameras, we were supposed to be acquainted with the program and at ease. However, I have never been and hope never to be so nervous in my entire life.

However, we beat Providence rather

handily and went on to take the measure of Indiana, Michigan State, and William & Mary, winning the championship by de-



Steven Ross, Theta '68, (right) was a member of the winning College Bowl team from Columbia University on nation-wide TV.

feating Smith College, a Seven Sisters rival.
Aside from the personal satisfaction of
being an undefeated champion, there were
some special rewards. I met Crayson Kick,
Columbia's president; the Alumni Association created a special award just to give to
us, and best of all, I received a fan letter
from a go-go dancer in Montreal who told
me that she spent nights thinking of me and
Paul Hornung. With that, as the fellow on
the right, I bid you farevell.

# Contributors to Theta Tau Progress

Theta Tau acknowledges with gratitude the gifts received from the following:

### UNRESTRICTED GIFT DONORS

Leland G. Atkinson, Ir., Rho '33 Edward A. Baker, Gamma Beta '39 Glen H. Ballowe, Gamma Beta '49 Robert A. Bornfriend, Theta '66 George E. Borst, Kappa '27 Paul H. Bowen, Signsa '40 John R. Brasel, Gamma Beta '32 Thomas F. Brastow, Nu '27 John P. Brennan, Chi '43 L. J. Brewer, Gamma '39 Frank E. Bunce, Mu '41 Robert S. Burns, Gamma Beta '53 Remo John Carboni, Mu '50 Arthur F. Cervenka, Theta '41 Donald W. Chrisman, Phi '42 Manfred Clayton, Tau '40 Manfred Clayton, Tau '40 Eliot D. Cohen, Gamma Beta '63 Richard E. Cole, Omega '47 G. F. Coope, Theta '14 Jack W. Cottrell, Tau '41 H. Velpeau Darling, Gamma Beta 33 11. Verylen Darling, Santina notes
11. Develon, E., Na '23
Richard H. Davis, Jr., Upullon '82
J. Robert Day, Jr., Tan '33
Richard H. Davis, Jr., Upullon '82
John M. Donzerey, Testa '37
John E. Damzerey, Theta '37
John F. Davis, Jr. (1998)
John F. Davis, Jr. (1998)
John J. Harton, Upullon '84
J. Heddel, Tan '34
R. T. Heddel, Tan '34
R. T. Heddel, Tan '37
R. T. Heddel, Ta Edward P. Davidson, Rho '41 William Whitfield Hopper, Jr., Bho '61 James Y. Howard, Tau 33 Tobin Humphrey, Theta Beta '64 Arthur L. Hunt, Omega '65 Ardrew L. Hunt, Oroega 65 Andrew L. Janes, Delta '24 George W. Jevne, Alpha '10 Martin J. Joel, Jr., Mu '48 George L. Johnson, Kappa '31 James A. Kearney, Theta '30 Louis E. Kilmarx, Pt '45 Henry L. Kinnier, Pi '42 Harry E. Krumlauf, Jr., Chi '58 Vincent D. Lauria, Mu '47 William M. Lewis, Gamma '09, Founder George M. Lieber, Delta '19 Theodore R. Lohr, Theta '24 John A. Lunn, Eta '17

W. Stanley Machen, Gamma Beta '44 Edwin G. Machin, Iota '22 Paul F. Maurer, Nu '22 G. E. Meyer, Xi '51 G. E. Meyer, Al 51 Robert P. Miller, Epsilon '20 Edward S. Monarchi, Delta '56 Frank Moy, Gamma Beta '65 Cliff Neely, Delta Beta '53 Chiri Neely, Delta Beta 53 John E. Parsons, Gamma Beta '38 Gerard V. Patrick, Eta '28 Ferman W. Perry, Pi '50 Louis H. Pfau, Mu '43 Louis H. Pfan, Mu '43 George Pela, Gamma Beta '47 Miles T. Rader, Gamma '48 John C. Reilly, Fr., Iota '49 James P. Ricks, Jr., Rho '51 Clark B. Rieke, Theta '37 Julius C. Ritter, Gamma Beta '42 Bernard' T. Rocca, Sv., Epulon' 13 George L. Santhury, Upsilon '37 L. A. Scheimeman, John '45 Louis U. Scheimema Irvin H. Schick, Gamma Beta '58 Donald G. Schmidt, Iota '48 David R. Shaw, Mu '63 Norman R. Siewert, Beta '36 Paul E. Smathers, Rho '52 Paul E. Smathers, Rho 52 Donald D. Snavely, Theta '43 Harry M. Spatzer, Theta '56 William C. Stapleton, Jr., Mu '49 Winthrop C. Swain, Eta '17 Wintirop C. Swain, Eta 17 Guy A. Swenson, Eta '13 Jay N. Thorpe, Lambda '57 Thomas P. Turchan, Gamma '35 Kent B. Van Horn, Delta '26 William Vermeulen, Theta '40 William P. Von Behren, Delta '25 George W. Wagner, Gamma Beta '54 Morgan S. Waugh, Delta Beta '62 John R. Webb, Kappa '32 Joseph R. White, Jr., Rho '61 John A. Wilson, Delta '40 James H. Wingard, Mu '22 David Lee Wong, Gamma Beta '65

#### FOUNDERS' MEMORIAL FUND



# Dr. Van Pelt Retires at Michigan Tech



Dn. J. R. Vax Pixtr, Michigan Tech '22, has been named president emeritus of Michigan Technological University. A farewell banquet was held in his honor at the Memorial Union on September 30, 1968. He became president of Michigan Tech in 1956, the only alumnus to hold that position, and became the University's first chancellor in 1965.

Brother Van Pelt received an A.B. degree from Cornell College and B.S. and E.M. degrees from Michigan Tech. He also did graduate work in geology at the University of Chicago.

From 1922 to 1925 be was a member of the faculty in the Department of Geology at Cornell College, where he became a proferesor. From 1928 to 1945 he was with the Museum of Science and Industry in Chicago, where he was curator, assistant director, and technical director. Then from 1945 to 1951, he was director of the Research Education Division and chairman of the Committee on Publications and Public Relations at the Battelle Memorial Institute in Columbus, Ohio.

Brother Van Pelt became president of Montana School of Mines in 1951, where he was also director of the Montana Bureau of Mines and Geology and chairman of the Secretary of the Interior's committee on organization and management of the U.S. Geological Survey. He served on the Western Interstate Commission on Higher Education and the Western Governor's Mining Advisory Council. In 1956 he went to Michigan Tech.

He is a life member of AIME, and a member of ECPD, ASEE, AAAS, and the Newcomen Society of England. His honor societies include Tau Beta Pi, Sigma Xi, Phi Beta Kappa, Phi Kappa Phi, Phi Eta Sigma, and Alpha Phi Omega.

He served in the field artillery as a second lieutenant in World War I, and was a War Department civilian consultant in World War II. He is a registered professional engineer in Ohio.

He is a director of the Copper Range

Company and of the Detroit and Northern Savings and Loan Association. He is a life member of the board of trustees of Cornell College and a trustee of the Michigan Tech Foundation.

His honorary degrees include the Sc.D.

from Cornell College in 1942 and the LL.D, from Chicago Medical School in 1957.

Brother Van Pelt and his wife have three married children. They plan to travel extensively and to spend considerable time at their Eagle Harbor lakeshore home.

## Dr. Martin is New Dean at SMU



Dr. TROMAS L. MAKTEN, Jr., Arizona Hon.

'42, became dean of engineering and vice
president of the Engineering and Science
Foundation of Southern Methodist University in August 1966. Until that time he had
been dean of the School of Engineering at
the University of Florida.

Brother Martin earned his bachelor's and

master's degrees in electrical engineering at Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, where he was an instructor. He earned his Ph.D. at Stanford University in 1951.

He was an assistant and associate professor of electrical engineering at the University of New Mexico, then became a professor and head of the Electrical Engineering Department at the University of Arizona. He was dean of the School of Engineering at Arizona before taking the similar position at Florida.

Brother Martin's many professional societies include ECAC, LEEE (Fellow), ASEE, and ECPD. He is a member of Sigma Xi, Sigma Tau, Eta Kappa Nu, Sigma Pi Sigma, Tau Beta Pi, and Phi Kappa Phi. He was Engineer of the Year in Northern Florida in 1965.

He served as a captain in the U.S. Army Signal Corps, and was awarded the Bronze Star Medal.

His writings include Ultrahigh Frequency Engineering, Electronic Circuits, and Physical Basis for Electrical Engineering, all published by Prentice-Hall, Strategy for Survical, published by the University of Arizona Press; and many papers in professional journals.

Brother Martin is married and is the

"Fraternity life is a great trainer on this point [leadership] for no one can be a leader until he has learned to work with others and to get along with others. Practically everything we do in life has to be done with and through others, so it is essential that we learn how to get along with and influence people.

You who have become leaders in your chapters know that you have to pay the price of leadership. The price is hard, continued study and work, so that you may know the facts. The road to successful leadership is paved with midnight oil."—
SYASILY LEANNED, KENBUS '24, in The Scroll of Phi Della Theta.

# Distinguished Career in Construction for Strike

CLIFFORD S. STRIKE, Illinois '24, has had a distinguished career in the construction industry and in public service. He is now president of his own consulting firm, Clifford S. Strike & Co., in New York City.

At the University of Illinois Brother Strike was manager of the college daily newspaper and in the summers worked for the Henry L. Doherty Co. When he graduated he took a job with Dwight P. Robinson & Co., engineer and contractor. He moved many times in his work for this firm, finally becoming job superintendent. In 1930 Brother Strike joined F. H. McGraw, who had quit Robinson shortly before to form his own company.

The new firm began with \$19 million in contracts and a staff of nearly 200, then rode out the Depression with a skeleton staff. Large projects came again in World War II, when the company's construction included the Jayhawk Ordnance Works in Kanass and the Bermuda Naval Air Station. Bother Strike became president of F. H. McGraw and Co. in 1941.

New challenges came after the War. Brother Strike went to Europe on behalf of the Government to supervise provision of housing for four million homeless Germans in the American Zone. He was then named U.S. Deputy Chief for Reparations and remained in Germany for eight months. For his work there he was awarded the Metal of Freedom by President Truman.

In 1947 Brother Strike was asked to go to Japan to appraise reparations there. The result was the formation of Overseas Consultants, Inc., a non-profit company involving eleven firms with Brother Strike as president.

OCI was dissolved after the job in Japan was finished, but soon the government of Iran asked for help in planning its development. The firm was reincorporated as a profit organization with Brother Strike as president. He met personal tragedy at this



time when his company plane crashed, killing Mrs. Strike and another person. He was not expected to live, but recovered and was back on the job for F. H. McGraw & Co. in two months.

A project of the firm which made headlines was the Atonic Energy Plant at Paducah, Kentucky, which was the largest single government contract given to a private construction firm up to that time. Brother Strike was president of the New England Steel Development Corporation which received a certificate of necessity from the National Security Resources Board to construct New England's first integrated steel mill.

Brother Strike was with McGraw until 1962. He was a partner in Strike and Meissner before forming his present firm.

He has received citations from the Navy Department, the War Department, and the University of Illinois.

## Wormser and Smith Honored by Columbia

Two members of Theta Tan have been cited by the Columbia Engineering Council for meritorious service. They are FELIX E. Wonssen, Columbia '16, and Arraus V. SATTII, Columbia' 33. Brother Wormser had retired as chairman of the council, and Brother Smith was a leader in the centennial observances of the School of Engineering at Columbia.

## Felix E. Wormser

Brother Wormser has been vice president of St. Joseph Lead Company since 1947. During the Eisenhower administration he was Assistant Secretary of the Interior for mineral resources.

He began work in 1916 as a mining engineer for Cornucopia Mines, followed by work as a U.S. mineral surveyor and as a mining engineer for the U.S. Bureau of Mines. He served on the editorial staff of McGraw-Hull from 1920 to 1925. From

1925 to 1947 he was a consulting mining engineer and from 1928 to 1947 he was secretary-treasurer of the Lead Industries Association. Brother Wormser is co-author of Marketing of Metals and Minerals, published in 1925.

He is a Fellow of AAAS and a member of AIME, SAME, and SAE. He has been vice president of the Mining and Metallurgy Society of America and chairman of the Engineering Council of Columbia. He has served on the Munitions Board and the advisory board of the War. Production Board, he is a member of the Primary Lead Producers' Industry.

Brother Wormser was honored by the Columbia Engineering School Alumni Association with its Erleston Medal in 1956.

#### Arthur V. Smith

Brother Smith is a patent attorney with Curtis, Morris & Safford; he has been with



Dean John R. Dunning (left) and Engineering Council chairman Donald V. Lowe (right) congratulate Felix E. Wormser, Columbia '16, and Arthur V. Smith, Columbia '33, on their having been cited by the Council for meritorious service.

the firm for more than 25 years. He graduated from Columbia College in 1931, received his B.S. in 1932, and his degree in electrical engineering in 1933. In 1938 he earned his law degree from New York U.

During World War II he was a member of the U.S. Power Squadron. He was also on the Naval Ordinance Board and connected with the Manhattan Project.

Brother Smith has been very active in Columbia alumni affairs. He has been executive director of the College Fund, a member of the College Council, a member of the Engineering Council, vice president of the Alumni Federation, president of the Columbia University Cult, and a director of the Varsity 'C' Club. Columbia Gollege awarded him the Alumni Medal in 1947 and he is a member of the Thomas Egleston Associates of the Engineering School

Brother Smith is a member of Phi Gamma Delta and the New York Yacht Club.

# Pittinger Heads Shell Pipe Line Company

JAMES H. PITTINGER, Colorado Mines '49, was named president of Shell Pipe Line Corporation, Houston, Texas, in November 1965. He has spent his entire career with Shell, having joined Shell Oll Company in 1949 as a junior geologist in the Exploration Department.

He remained in some area of exploration until 1963, serving in Tulsa, Oklahoma, New York City, North Texas, and Houston. In 1961 he had a special assignment in Niveria's Niver Delta.

By 1963 Brother Pittinger had advanced to the position of exploration manager of the Houston area. He was then named a public affairs fellow of the Brookings Institute in Washington, D.C. This six-month program is designed to acquaint business men with internal operations of the Federal Government. Brother Pittinger's assignment was in the Department of the Interior.

He was then assigned to be exploration manager for Shell's head office in New York. In November 1963 he became general manager of purchasing-stores at the head office and he held that position until he assumed his present duties.

Brother Pittinger served in the Navy Air Force during World War II. He is a member of the American Association of Petroleum Geologists, a Fellow of the Geological Society of America, and a member of the American Petroleum Institute, the National



Petroleum Council, the Transportation Association of America, and the Association of Oil Pipe Lines. He is a committee member of many of those organizations. Brother Pittinger is also a trustee of Shell Companies Foundation, the United Fund of Houstons, and the Harris County Council Boy Scouts of America. He is a member of the Advisory Committee of the School of Business of the University of Houston.

# Dr. Spalding Receives Award, Leave of Absence

by Alan Bahler, Phi '67, and James Walter, Phi '68



Dn. Albert R. Spalders, Pardue Hon. 37, received the Western Electric Fund Award for 'excellence in engineering instruction' by the American Society for Engineering Education. This award is made annually to the outstanding teacher in the Illinois-Indiana section of the society.

Brother Spalding was graduated from Lehigh in 1937. He received his M.S.M.E. from Purdue in 1942 and his Ph.D. in 1948. He is a professional engineer in Indiana. Brother Spalding was made an honorary member of Phi Chapter of Theta Tau in 1950.

As head of the Department of Freshman Engineering since 1933, he has contributed immeasurably to engineering education at Purdue University and to the students who have sought his counsel. In the area which has grown increasingly complex due to expansion of basic knowledge and revolutionary advancements in technology, he has achieved success by pioneering an outstanding program for freshman engineers. In the fall of 1958 the Honors Program was developed to identify and challenge the superior student. Since the Honors Program began, the quality of the engineering curriculum has increased so remarkably that the regular program for all freshman engineers is now comparable to the 1958 Honors Program for the superior students. In the Honors Program, through counseling, students are encouraged to begin a program of self-study during the summer before they enter college. Not only are students counseled individually and encouraged to qualify for advanced courses, but new courses and innovations in teaching methods have been so successful that they have served as a model at Purdue and at other universities for similar programs.

Brother Spalding is co-author of a testbook, Elementary Heat Power and Thermal book, Elementary Heat Power and Thermal Engineering, widely used in engineering classrooms throughout the country. He has also contributed Chapter X, 'Engineering as a Profession,' to the book, Student Engineering Manual, soon to be published by McGraw-Hill. His chapter is a study of the engineer in comparison to the scientist and the technician.

Brother Spalding was instrumental in 'Operation Facelift,' a remodeling of the chapter house. Although his present work load prevents him from acting as Chapter Adviser, he is still a very good friend of

the Fraternity.

On Sunday, January 8, Phi Chapter held
a formal dinner in honor of Brother Spalding, who has taken a leave of absence to
join a group of U.S. educators going to
Kabul, Afghanistan, to establish a university
there.

Present at the dinner were Dr. and Mrs. Spalding; Dr. Edward Thoma, Purdue Hon, '38, president of Indiana Institute of Technology, and Mrs. Thoma; Dr. Joseph Oppenlander, Case '52, Chapter Adviser, James Mahaffey, Purdue '51, and Mrs. Mahaffey; Gene Nottoli, Purdue '52, and Mrs. Nottoli; Nick Trbovich, Purdue '34; Al Hribar, Purdue '65; and Bill Lautner, Purdue '66.

After the dinner, speeches were given by Brothers Thoma and Mahaffey and by Regent Mynhier. Brother Spalding was presented with an engraved pen set and his name was added to Phi's plaque listing past advisers. The presentation was followed by an informal hour of reminiscing and farewells to Brother Spalding.

## Cervenka is President of ASTME

ARTHUR CRINNEA, Columbia '41, has been installed as president of the 40,000-member American Society of Tool and Manufacturing Engineers. He is staff engineer consultant for manufacturing management for Grumann Aircraft Engineering Corporation of Bethnare. New York

Brother Cervenka joined Grumman in 1941 as assistant chief tool engineer, and has been chief equipment and process engineer, manager of equipment and process engineering, and director of corporate facilities for the company.

He was a charter member of the Long Island Chapter of ASTME and has held all elective chapter offices. He has held national offices in the organization since 1957, and received its Award of Merit in 1959.

Brother Cervenka has served on technical committees for the American Standards Association, the Aerospace Industries Association, and the AIA. The American Society of Mechanical Engineers awarded him a certificate for his leadership in development of codes and standards.

He is a registered professional engineer in New York and is a member of NSPE and the New York Society of Professional Engi-



neers. He is a member of Columbia College Alumni Association and a life member of the Columbia Engineering School Alumni Association. Brother Cervenka is listed in Who's Who in America and Who's Who in the East.

The qualified engineer of today realizes the limitation of science and technology. But with this realization, he is better able to assess the true potential for great engineering accomplishments. He realizes that in spite of substantial progress so far, only a start has been made in overcoming the great world challenges we face in the future. The broad-gauge individual looks to the future with every degree of confidence, ever knowing life will not be easy.

"A new engineer is emerging. His analytical and rethnical background is his base. True understanding and tolerance are his creed. Pride and perseverance are his motivation. With these, he is uniquely qualified to go forth and lead this land we love and perhaps for the first time in history take advantage of the unlimited opportunities mature has given us."—H. Box Cuors. Ohio State Hon. "48, in The Bent of Tau Bent Ti.

# In Memoriam

Pior. Rosent W. Allicourz, Missowi et Rolls '24, deal December 29, 1966. He had been chairman of the Electrical Engineering Department at the University of the Electrical Engineering Department at the University of the College and the College seed in August Rother, Ablajant received his master of soince degree of the University of the When Lee west to lowe State University 1959, when Lee west to lowe State University 1959, when Lee west to lowe State University of the West Rosen Engineering Company, and Tarsellers Indemnity Company, the Company and Tarsellers Indemnity Company, the West Rosen Engineering Company, and Tarsellers Indemnity Company, the West Rosen Engineering Company and Droke University, Brother Michigan and Lowe, and was a member of ASEE, IEEE, Tan Betz P., Eta Kappa Nu, and Sigma Tan-Lee in survived by the soft, three con, seven graded in the Property of the State Company of the Company of the State Com

GLENN H. ALVEY, California (Berkeley) '19, died October 25, 1966. He was president of the Uvalde Rock Asphalt Company, San Antonio, Texas. Brother Alvey was also a member of Phi Delta Theta.

EABLE B. BLEXKENSTAFF, Colorado Mines '25, died November 10, 1966 at his home in Mojave, California. He was co-owner and manager of the Standard Hill Mine. Brother Blickenstaff was a member of Beta Theta Ft. He is survived by two daughters and seven grandchaldren.

THOMAS I. BRIGGS, Jin., North Carolina State '44, ided May 20, 1905 in Manchester, Connecticat, He was a senior project engineer in the Component Development Department of Part & Whitney Australia Carolina Caro

HUGH LEE BURGHFREL, California (Berkeley) '22, died November 2, 1966 in Dallas, Texas. He had setired about two years ago from Cities Service Oil Company, but continued to do consulting work in Dallas. Brother Burchfiel was employed after graduation as a geologist for Standard Oil Comparty of California, and spent 30 years with the company and its subsidiaries, the California Company and Standard Oil Company of Texas. In 1934 he was sent to Arabia by Standard Oil Company of California, where he was a member of the groupsical exploration group which made the higgest oil discovery the world has known to date. The exploration was made by aerial photos, by automobile, and by camel. A few years ago Brother Burchfiel retired as chief geologist of Standard Oil Company of Texas, and went to work for American Petroleum Company of Dallas, a small independent. He sold the company to Columbian Carbon, which later merged with Cities Service Oil Company. Brother Burchfiel is survived by two slaughters, two grandchildren, a brother, and two sisters.

EVENUTT ARTHUR CAULSON, Case '20, died November 5, 1965 in Rocky River, Ohio. He was employed in the Engineering Department of the National Carbon Company, a division of the Union Carbide Corporation, for almost 35 years. He was also a Mason of long standing. Brother Carbon is survived by his wife.

Gatan. 7. Cooras, Ja. Coorge, Washington et.
Gatan. N. Cook, S. M. S. Gatan. 1967 at June vin. Gen MaPark, Maryland. He was a senior member at the
National Bursan of Standards. Retrober Council
was employed by Herbert L. Wilson & Associates,
the NSS in 1950. He developed a method for
measuring current noise in resistors which has been
tuned to the senior of the senior of the Standard of the
Standard of the Standard of the Standard of the
Tamistics Testing Laboratory, his studies of the
aging behavior of transisters has resulted in more
placing program. Bother Council was the author
of numerous thechnical articles, He was a member
the American delegation to an International Electrotechnical Commission meeting in Interlaken,
Switzerland, finisher Council is survived by his
available of the Standard of the Standard Standard

CRARLES E. CREER, Carnegie Tech '35, died December 29, 1964 in Altadena, California. He is survived by his wife.

FRED S. ERINGER, Gare '31', theil June 4, 1966 in Warren, Ohlo. He was an expeditor at the Warren Plant of Republic Stock, and formerly had been Plant of Republic Stock, and formerly had been consider of the Plant of Plant He was a new part of the Child of the Child Child of the Child Ch

ROBERT E. EVENSON, Morstand Tech '50, died September 3, 1986 in Sacramento, California. He was assistant district geologist for the U.S. Geological Survey.

loavs H. Foxwerz, Jones 27, died May 20, 1996 in Blochester, New York. He was manaper of manuiscrating services at Eastman Kodak Company's Eastman in 1993 as a chemical plant engineer. He became supervisor in the plant, assistant superistendent in 1934, and the swarded on the executive production staff at the main office in 1941standendent in 1934, and the material of the extendendent in 1934, and the material of the contendendent in 1934, and the material of the contendendent in 1934, and the material of the consumed his last position in 1954. Brother Following was active in community services. He was former vice president of the Rechester Safety Consol, a vice president of the Rechester Safety Consol, as the advisory bound of the University of Rechester. Department of Chemical Engineering, and a number of the national board of the Boy Scouts of America. He had received the Silver Beaver Award from the Boy Scoots. He was a member of Sigma Xi, Phi Lambela Epation, and Tau Beta Fi. Brother Folowell is survived by his wife, four suns, a daughter, two brothers, a sister, his mother, and eight grandchildren.

Joux P. Fav, Cursegie Tech 27, died November 21, 1996 in Flemington, Fennsylvania. He was employed by the New York and Prennylvania Paper Company of Johnsohou, Prennylvania paper Company of Johnsohou, Prennylvania Paper Language of the 35 years, then at the Hamson of the State of the State of the State vania, as power superindender for four years. Brother Fry was a member of Sigma Alpha Egsiton Frzebruly and the Pennylvania Society of Professional Engineers, and was a Past Master of Son, a daughter, and two grandelshiften.

CROILES ENVAND GASCURS, Obis State '33, died October 16, 1966 in San Manuel, Artiona. He established the Carma Manufacturing Company in Tuctom and in California 18 years asos, and piastrone and California 18 years asos, and piastrone and carma control of the company in the co

CLEATER MILEN GLASCOW, Colorado Mines 10, died Jamury 24, 1097 at his home in Los Olivos, California. He was a retired mining engineer and a noted California landescape article. Hendre Glascow was a melber of a preserve Minouri Handshoft and California California

OLYUR S. HAGERSON, Mimoratof TA, died January 24, 1007 while on a vint to San Francisco. He was retired chairman of the boards of Charleston Cesup companies of Columbia Cas System, and Ireed in Section 11, 100 and 11, 100

companies in 1946. In 1951 he became chairman of the companies. Brother Hagerman was a director of the Charleston National Bank, a director of the Charleston National Bank, a director of Cross and PMCA, and a director of the American Gas Association. He was a member of the Charleston Betary Clab, Sons of the American Revolution, and Masonic orders. Brother Hagerman is unconsistent of the Charleston (Carettee) where and four some CTor Charleston (Carettee) where and four some CTor Charleston

RUDOLPH O. HERRIG, Case '19, died February 6, 1967 in Delray Beach, Florida.

BALES N. HOFFMAN, Kamus TJ, died December 16, 1996 in Portland Valley, California, Ather graduations from the University of Kansas, he worked in 1902. In 1925 the returned to Children California operations depertured to Children as exclusive graduation of the Anna California Children California. Nation 1940 Dodge in Mound, Arizona until his retirement, when he moved to California. He was a member of the AIME, Botary, and Massimic orders. Brother definition of the Children Chi

HALPH A. LOVEZAND, Michigan Tech '14, died December 5, 1966 in Ann Arbor, Michigan.

Common R. Luxt, Iouse '21, died December 6, 1966 in Fort Lamberlale, Firefals, where he had retired in 1960. He had been manager of sales and contraction of bridges, tasks, wind tunnels, structural steel work, and water works for Pithologishing the sales of the properties of the pr

STEPHEN D. MOXLEY, Sn., Alahama '22, a charter member of Mu Chapter, died February 22, 1967 as the result of an automobile accident in which his wife was also killed. He had retired in 1963 as president of American Cast Iron Pipe Company, Birmingham, Alabama. He served the company for 40 years, joining it in 1923 as a draftsman and advancing through posts as chief engineer, assistant to the vice president, vice president, executive vice president, and president in 1955. Brother Modes was chosen as Birmingham's "Man of the Year in 1960 in recognition of his many service activities. He was chaiman of the Water Board, the Jefferson County Christmas Seal sale, and of the Badio Free Europe fund for Alabama, and was a trustee and director of numerous civic, religious, and cul-tural activities. He was a Fellow of AIME and a member of the State Board of Registration for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors, the Engineers Club of Birmingham, Pi Tan Sigma, and Omicron Delta Kappa. He was also a charter member of the Tau Beta Pi chapter at Alabama. He received a citation from the University of Ala-



Stephen D. Moxley, Sr.

ham in 1651 and wax serving as an hamorary adjunct professor of mechanical engineering there. Brother Moxley is survived by a daughter and two suns, including Strumus D, Moxxxx, jas, Addessus 469, and by two brothers and four sisters. Theta Tay wax represented at Borber Moxley's memorial service by Past Grand Regent William K. Rey and a delegation of Mu actives and alumnis.

PROF. LUTE J. PARKINSON, Colorado Mines '23. died September 26, 1966 in Avignon, France. He was professor emeritus of the Colorado School of Mines and an internationally recognized mining engineer. His home was in Pismo Beach, Califor-nia. Brother Parkinson was connected with many of the world's great mining firms during his career. He was assistant general manager of DeBeers Consolidated Mines Limited in South Africa, general superintendent of the Anglo-Lautaro Nitrate Com-pany in Chile and of the Braden Copper Company in Chile, and was a director of the Trusx-Traer Coal Company. For 10 years beginning in 1952, he was head of the Department of Mining Engineering at Mines, where he helped establish the Mining Research Laboratory and the Golden Symphony Orchestra. He was a talented clarinet player. Colorado School of Mines awarded him the silver Distinguished Achievement Award in 1950. Brother Parkinson had a great interest in Africa, and wrote Memoirs of African Mining, an autobiography and commentary. In 1956 he was a visiting fecturer to Italy, and in 1959 he lectured at universities in England, Germany, and Africa. Brother Parkinson is survived by a son, a daughter, a sister, and two brothers, including Genald Parkinson, Colorado Mines '25. (Mines Magazine)

Joseph G. Powerz, Ohio State '34, died February 26, 1966 in Connecticut. He was head of the Engineering Evaluation Division of the U.S. Nave Undersoter Sound Laboratoy. After his graduation from Ghis State, Brother Fowell pinned the Power and Light Company in Columbus as an electrical construction engineer. In 1931 he was electrical contention engineer. In 1931 he was electrical contention engineer. In 1931 he was electrical contention of the Columbus and the Columb

ODEN B. PYLE, MIT '16, died December 4, 1966 in Flourtown, Pentaylvania. He was also a member of Alpha Delta Phi.

MAURICE NORTHBOP QUADE, Illinois '25, died June 12, 1966 while on a business trip to Sea Island, Georgia. He was senior partner in the engineering firm of Parsons, Brinckerhoff, Quade & Douglas in New York City, and was to have retired on July 1. His home was in West Orange, New Jersey. After he received his M.S. degree from Illinois, he became a structural engineer with the firm of Wadcame a structural engineer with the firm of Wad-dedl & Hardesty in New York. The firm later shared office space with Parsons, Klapp, Brickerheff & Douglas, and Brother Quade worked for both firms, Among the bridges designed by him are the Buzzards Bay Bridge on Cape Cod, the George P. Coleman Memorial Bridge in Yorktoven, Virginia, and the Pelican Island Causeway, Galveston, Texas. His highway projects include the Richmond-Petersburg Turnpike and the Hampton Roads Bridge-Turnel in Virginia, the Dupont Circle Underpass in Washington, and a section of the New Jersey Turnpike. His structural projects include the Hoboken Marine Terminal for the Port of New York, a study to improve and increase the capacity of the Panama Canal, and design of a combat op-erations center for the North American Air Defense Command. Brother Ouade won ASCE's Thomas Fitch Bowland Prize in 1955, and last year the University of Illinois granted him one of the first College of Engineering Alumni Honor Awards. Also last year he was cited by Engineering News-Record as being "among the many men who serve the best interests of the construction industry." Brother Quade was a registered professional engineer in Quade was a registered professional engineer in 17 states and the Fanami Canal Zone, and his many organizations included ASCE, Consulting Engineers Council, NSPE American Institute of Consulting Engineers, and the Engineering Divi-sion of the American Road Bullders' Association. He was chairman of the Coordinating Committee on Relations of Engineers in Private Practice with Government. A "Maurice Northrop Quade Lounge" for the civil engineering faculty in the new Civil Engineering Building at the University of Illinois has been established by his partners and friends. Brother Quade is survived by his wife, a son, a daughter, and four grandchildren.

ROBERT P. SHAW, Colorado Mines '45, died October 7, 1966 in Long Beach, California. He is survived by his wife, two sons, and a brother.

HASGID F. SINDIR, Missouri at Rolla 22, died April 28, 1966 in Borene, Texas, After graduation, Brother Shore was employed with mining firms in Island and Missouri, and in 1928 he went to in Island and Missouri, and in 1928 he went to Company, Led. of Tokyo. In 1927 he returned to the States and was employed by Geophysical Escarch Corporation until 1922 when he joined in Company Led. on the State and was employed by Company in Houston, Texas. Buther-Shore returned in 1939, but during World War II he returned to the company is uporevise a less grinding project of the Company in House of the State and World War II he returned to the company is uporevise a less grinding project to the company in the World World March 1949. The half upon in Borene, Texas since 1949, and the World War arrivers him there. (1838)

LESTER C. THOMAS, Colorado Miner '12, died December 11, 1966 in Denver, Colorado. He was vice president of Hyers Electronics Company Brother Thomas worked in engineering for a short time before entering the U.S. Naval Aviation Forces in 1918. In the 1920's he was secretarytreasurer of Mountain States Tractor Company. He became president of the Thomas Hickerson Motor Company from 1921 to 1955, and he assumed his last position in 1955. Brother Thomas was a member of Beta Theta Pt. He devoted much time to Colorado School of Mines. He was a member of the Board of Trustees from 1945 to 1947 and served as president from 1949 to 1957. He had been a member of the board of directors of the Colorado School of Mines Foundation since 1947. Brother Thomas was awarded the Mines Silver Distinguished Achievement Medal in 1954, and Distinguished Achievement the Board of Trustees has announced that a new dormitory will be named in his honor, (Mines Manusine)

Dr. Romert J. Van der Geazary, Adshame 22. a charter mensher of Mu Chapper, died Jamanary 1, 1907 in Buston, Massachinetts. He was a noted scientist who developed the Van de Graaff generator. He took his B.S. and M.S. degrees at the University of Alabama, then studied physics at the Sorbonne University in Faris and later went to Oxford University as a Rhodoes Scholar, where

he earned his Ph.D. degree. He joined the Palmer Physics Labostory at Princeton University in 1929. and went to MIT in 1931 as research associate. It was there that he developed the particle generator. During World War II Brother Van de Graaff was director of the Federal high voltage radiographic project of the Office of Scientific Research and Development. In 1946 he founded the High Voltage Engineering Corporation of Burlington. Votage Engineering Corporation of formington, Massachmetts, a leading producer of the particle accelerator. Brother Van de Graaff received many petzes and honors, including the Naval Ordnance Development Award in 1946, the Duddell Medal of the Physical Society of Great Britain in 1947, the Charles B. Dudley Medal of the ASTM in 1948, the Bonner Prize of the American Physical Society in 1966, and honorary degrees from the University of Utrecht in the Netherlands, Florida State University, and the University of Alabama Brother Van de Graaff is survived by his wife, two sons, and a heather.

ELLWOOD G. WASHINGEN, Kensis '16, died January 4, 1867 in Kansas City, Missouri. He was a retired engineer for the Brown-Straus Corporation. Brother Washburn was a Mason and a Shriner. He is survived by his wife, a daughter, three sisters, and four grandchilden.

WALTER W. WENTZ, Minnesota '14, died December 19, 1966 in Blue Earth, Minnesota. He had retired as head of the Electrical Department of Dunwoody Institute in Minneapolis in 1956, and lived in Elmore, Minnesota during the winter and Bemidji during the summer. After his graduation from the University of Minnesota, Benther Wentz was employed by the General Electric Company at Schenectady, New York and St. Louis, Missouri-He entered the service in 1918 as a second lieutenant Air Force pilot. In 1921 he joined the Dunwoody Institute in the position he held until his retirement. Brother Wentz was a member of the Methodist Church, the American Legion, and the Masons. He is survived by his wife, three sisters, and two brothers, including CLARENCE A. WENTZ. Minnesota '27.

# 25 and 50 Years Ago in Theta Tau

# 25 YEARS AGO The Fifteenth Biennial Convention met in St. Louis three weeks after Pearl Harbor. An atmos-

50 YEARS AGO

phere of seriousness pervaded the activities, as all chapters reported men leaving for service and plans were made for meeting the problems of the war.

Alpha Chapter was planning its annual canoe trip from Taylor's Falls to Stillwater.

As usual, Zeta Chapter sponsored the Queen of the engineers' Hob Nail Hop.

The Governor of North Carolina spoke at Rho Chapter's initiation banquet. (From the Spring 1942 GEAR) A mass meeting was held at Columbia University on the "war question," and a majority of students expressed willingness to serve.

THE GEAR carried a list of members serving with the Militia on the Mexican border.

Kappa Chapter sponsored intercollegiate debates by members of the engineering colleges of various branches.

Prof. George Louderback, Epsilon, reported on a two year geological field trip to China. (From the 1917 Gran)

# Alumni Notes

## MINNESOTA

A

Stream.

Geonga W. Jexxx, 10, is retired and is living in Escendido, California. DAVID M. GREYNAN, '15, is president and general manager of Eskew Smith & Cannon, wholesale distributors in Charleston, West Virginia.

Proc. J. LAUDRINGE, '15, is retired; he fives in Coral Gables, Florida.

JOHN T. BAILEY, '29, is project manager for Chemical Construction Company, New York City. He lives in Short Hills, New Jersey.

LLOTD A. DUSCINA, '45, is amistant chief of the Engineering Division for the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. His home is in Cinnaminson, New Jersey.

HARRY T. SWANSON, '48, is president of Coster Sales, Inc., Larchmont, New York. He lives in Norwalk, Connecticut.

RICHARD F. MOORHOUSE, '50, is a senior engineer with Lockhord Missiles & Space Company. He is located in Saratoga, California.

JULIO COUDERIO, '51, is a senior staff scientist for AVCO Missile Systems Division in Wilmington, Massachussetts. His home is in Malden. REMARIO E. HUSBY, '57, is a senior commercial development engineer for Phillips Petroleum Company in Villa Park Illinois. He lives in Carol

JAMES McCARVILLE, '94, is now working as a development engineer for Minnesota Mining and Manufacturing, 5t. Paul, Minnesota. He lives in West St. Paul.

CHARLES OLESON, '64, is now working in New Product Development at Combustion Engineering, Windson, Connecticut. He was formerly with Fratt & Whitney Aircraft in East Hartford, Connecticut. Brother Oleson is in the evening MBA program at the University of Hartford.

Enward Kormen, Jn., '66, is a purchasing agent for Acrometal Products, Minneapolis.

## MICHIGAN TECH

Georgie A. Monunson, '04, is retired; he lives in Fountain, Florida.

Enwann J. Have, '08, is retired and is living in Walmut Creek, California.

S. H. LORAIN, '17, is retired; he lives in Lund, British Columbia. FRANCIS B. GREFFITM, '22, retired in September from the presidency of Wyandotte Terminal Railroad Company. He has been elected chairman of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors of Wyandotte Savings Bank, Wyandotte, Michigan. Brother Griffith lives in Grosse He.

NORMAN R. SIEWERT, '36, is president of Siewert Equipment Inc. and Kinctlow Corporation of New York and New Brunswick, Canada. He lives in Rochester, New York

Cot. Eowis R. Dickin, '41, has been awarded the Republic of Korea 'Order of Service Merit, Third Class.' The award was given for his work with the Republic of Korea Army, and for his concern towards improvement of Korea-American concern towards improvement of Korea-American the Shev Manage other honors he has received in the Shev Manage other honors he has received in the Shev Seal program of Korea-for his support of the Box Scoot program of Korea-

EASI. D. CAMPRELL, '43, is a purchasing agent for General Electric Company, Erie, Pennsylvania. He lives in North East, Pennsylvania.

RICHARD AGRICOLA, '53, is supervisor of the Ordnance Applications Laboratory at Martin Company, Denvez. His home is in Littleton, Colorado.

JOSEN W. BUBLINGAME, '54, is a metallurgist for the Frankford Arsenal of the U.S. Army in Philadelphia, Permylvania. HUGH McSHANE, '58, is president of Progressive

Air Company, Inc., Lausing, Michigan.

F. R. SCEMMITT, '58, is employed as a flight officer with United Air Lines, which he joised in September 1900. He lives in Ypollanti, Michigan.

W. Donald Jacobs, '60, is a mechanical engineer for Bethlehem Steel Corporation in Baltimore, Maryland.

## COLORADO MINES

THOMAS G. FOULKES. '22, is retired from the Bethlehem Steel Corporation. He lives in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania.

RUPERT B. Lows, '22, is retired from the Union Carbide Corporation: he lives in Locust, New Jersey.

Joun Bountroon, '22, is retired and is living in Bel Air, Maryland.

PAUL D. BLISS, '20, is a mechanical engineer for American Cyanamid in Piney River, Virginia. His home is in Amherst.

THOMAS P. TUBCHAN, '35, is general manager of the Organic Chemicals Division of American Cyanamid Company, Bound Beook, New Jersey. His home is in Rumson. L. J. BREWER, '39, is a senior mining engineer for International Minerals Engineers, Grand Junction, Colorado.

JACK D. Powess, 39, is district overseer for the Watch Tower Bible Society in Montevideo, Uruguay, South America.

H. D. Reporse, '47, is a drilling superintendent for Phillips Petroleum Company in Borger, Texas.

Miles T. Raden, Jr., '48, is doing geological data processing for Creule Petroleum Corporation in Caracus, Venezuela.

Jones G. Cowan, '49, is a senior drilling engineer for Tenneco Oil Company. He is located in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

CHARLES E. MELBYE, '50, has been appointed chief geologist-mining of the Natural Resources Division of Union Pacific Railroad Company. He has moved to Whittier, California.

DAVID R. COLE, '32, has joined John I. Schumacher in the Strategic Minerals Exploration Company, Grand Junction, Colorado, Brother Cole has been senior metal mine inspector for the Colorado Bureira of Mines since 1961. Prior to that he was project engineer with the Idarado Mining Company in Telluride, Colorado.

EDWARD W. HEATH, '54, is assistant district geologist for Sun Oil Company in Abilene, Texas.

ROBERT B. STECK, '57, is director of marketing for Multi-Amp Corporation, Cranford, New Jersey. His home is in Belmar.

DARYL C. DEEXEMBOOF, '64, has been promoted to first lieutenant while serving with the 36th Engineer Battalion at Fort Irwin, California. He is a platoon leader in the hattalion's Company B.

### CASE



Annuew L. Janes, '24, is retired; he lives in Clearwater, Florida.

WILLIAM P. Voor Biziners, 25, is manager of engineering support operation for General Electric Company, Bridgeport, Connecticut. His home is in Fairfield.

MAURICE F. CRASS, JR., '26, is secretary-treasurer of the Manufacturing Chemists' Association, Inc., Washington, D.C. He lives in Kensington, Md.

Josse C. Millen, 20, has formed his own company, Miller Gear Company, in North Bidgevelle, Ohin. He had been executive vice president of Skidnsow Gear Company in Cleveland. His other especiesce has been with Ohio Injector Company, Van Dom and Dotton Genmyany, National Tool Company, and Dotton Genmyany, Saindan Tool Company, and so Ohio representative for the American Gear Company.

Annucw G. Trianizm, '28, is group leader for plant engineering for Union Carbide Corporation, South Charleston, West Virginia.

ALPRED S. WILLARD, Ja., '35, is senior staff power plant engineer for Armstrong Cork Company, Lancaster, Pennsylvania.

DAVID M. BARBETT, '40, is engineering manager for Keleket, a division of LFE, Inc., in Waltham, Managehusetts. His home is in Bedford.

RICHARD C. HAAS, '47, is manager of construction market development for General Electric Company in Louisville, Kentucky.

BENJAMIN F. AVERY, '48, has been elected a Fellow of the Illuminating Engineering Society, He is supervisory engineer in the Large Lamp Department, General Electric Company, New York, New York

Ressell. D. Cheschell, '49, manager of special lamp application, Large Lamp Department, General Electric Company, Cleveland, Ohio, has been elected a Fellow of the Illuminating Engineering Society.

WALTER RAYMER, '50, is an associate editor with Conover-Mast Publications, Inc., New York City,

Kelly M. Dyen, II, '52, is a sales engineer for Pittsburgh Plate Glass Company in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

ROBERT C. KAUPPIELD, '53, is a technical representative for Du Pont, Wilmington, Delaware. His home is in Newark.

EDWARD S. MONARCHI, '56, is principal analyst for Creole Petroleum Corporation in Tia Juana, Zulia, Venezuela.

Howard J. Horron, Jr., '60, is a computer analyst for Sun Oil Company, Philadelphia. His bome is in Springfield, Pennsylvania.

DAVID R. HAMEIN, '64, is an engineer for Eastman Kodak Company, Rochester, New York.

ROBERT W. OLEPSLANT, '64, is a graduate student at Case.

LOUIS COREN, '86, was married last August, and is a graduate student at Case in control engineering under an NDEA Fellowship. He is living in Mayfield Heights, Ohio.

## CALIFORNIA (BERKELEY)

Dr. REJARD J. RUSSELL, '19, professor of peography and geology and director of the Coastal Studies Institute at Louisian State University, was Hitchcock Professor for September-October, 1965 at the Berkeley campus of the University of California, in additional control of the Computer of California in additional control of the Computer of the Computer of the Coastal Studies in the Coastal Stu

dition to a series of public lectures on geomorphology, he took part in conferences and colloquia on the campus. Brother Russell is a Past Grand Regent of Theta Tau.

William Henry Corey, '27, is refined and is living in Woodland Hills, California.

Jones Ellor Allen, '33, is head of the Department of Earth Sciences at Portland State College, Portland, Oregon.

CONCELUS K. HAM, '51, is manager of operations for Cerro de Pasco Petroleum Corporation, Lima, Peru.

BURTON B. BAKKEN, '57, is a research engineer in the field of ocean mining for Lockheed Missiles & Space Company, Sunnyvale, California. His home is in Tiburon.

Dn. Jones M. De Novan, '57, a deputy director for nuclear test detection of the Advanced Research Projects Agency of the Department of Defense, Washington, D.C. He lives in Chevy Chase, Md.

Rex E. Olaen, '57, is now senior geologist with the Western Division of Humble Oil and Refining Company, Los Angeles. In 1966 he became a certified professional geologist and a certified petroleum recologist.

### KANSAS

PAUL S. Fox, '20, is a retired civil and sanitary engineer. He lives in Kissimmez, Florida.

DEAN A. McGez, '26, clearman of the board of Kerr-McGee Corporation, Oklahoma City, delivered an address before the Atunic Industrial Forum Annual Conference in November.

CARL A. POPPINO, '28, is at Arizona State University. He is working on a project, "K.U. Engineers, 1925-27," in which he is contacting alumni of those clauses.

Roy F. DENT, Ja., M.D., '29, is a medical doctor in Colorado Springs, Colorado. He worked for General Electric as an electrical engineer for eight years before entering medical school.

THE REV. DONALD G. LITTLE, '29, retired as a colonel after 30 years in the Army Engineers. He then attended seminary and was ordained a priest in the Episcopal Church. His pastorate is in Manne, Genria.

STREETS A. DEMINO, '31, is working for his doctorate in Tucson, Arizona.

CHARLES W. CLUTZ, '33, is superintendent of manufacturing engineering for Eastman Kodak Company, Rochester, New York.

LLOYD F. CHUSTIANSON, '35, is president of Electronic Associates, Inc., West Long Branch, New Jersey. His home is in Rumson.

FRED SMITHMENER, '38, is serving as acting chairman of metallurgy at KU.

DONALD L. FLANDERS, '39, is district engineer for Spanall Inc., Kansas City, Missouri. He lives in Mission, Kansas.

HUUR W. MAGRUDER, '39, is a sales specialist for General Electric Company in Charlotte, North

Frank C. Beock, '40, is a retired power plant engineer for UCC Plastics Company. He lives in Mountain Lakes, New Jersey.

HOV K. BORENE, '48, is a civil engineer (soil mechanics) for the U.S. Corps of Engineers. He was married in June 1965, and has a daughter. Brother Borene lives in Shawner, Kansar.



KENNETTE N. WIRTZE.

54, was nimed Toutstanding Young Engineer of the Year' by
the Western Chapter
of the Missouri Society of Professional
Engineers. The award
was presented during Engineers Week,
1967. Brother White
is a registered professional engineer in

is a registered professional engineer in Missouri, Kansas, Iowa, and Colorado, and has been active in SPE, his church, and local religion He

and has been active in SFE, his church, lives in Shawnee, Kansa, and is a commissioner of Water District No. 1 in Johnson County and chairman of its Engineering Committee. Brother White is married and has a daughter and a son.

Ivan Henman, '56, is an engineer in the Production Division of Standard Oil of Ohio in Russell, Kansas

DAVID H. "ACR" BROWN, '57, is a patent examiner for the U.S. Patent Office, Washington, D.C. He wass married in 1963 and has a som, David, Jr. The family recently moved to a new home in Spetogfield, Virginia.

CAPT. JACOB F. GOBLE, '58, has been sent to Vietnam to fly with the "Jolly Green Giant" helicopters.

ROBERT H. McCamiss, '58, is an electronics engineer for the National Security Agency at Fort G. G. Meade, Maryland. His home is in Bowie.

FREDERICK H. "RECK" JONES, '60, is a plant engineer for Mobil Oil Company in Kansas City.

C. ROBERT FRANKLIN, '61, has been transferred by the Kresge Company from Denver. Colorado to Fremont, Nebraska, where he is manager of the Jupiter Store. LARGE RUSCO, '61, is a plant engineer for Union Carbide

DAVID H. STOLTENBERG, '61, is a civil engineer with the U.S. Department of Agriculture in Champaign. Illinois.

CARL McCLENG, '62, is doing engine development and design for Caterpiller Tractor Company. He lives in Metamora, Illinois.

GUY A. SWENSON, '13, is president of the John Swenson Granite Co., Inc., Concurd, New Hamp-Dn. Joses A. Leses, '17, is a manage-ment consultant in Cambridge, Massa-

chusetts. Hingham, Massachusetts.

WENTHROP C. SWAIN, '17, is an ecunomic and engineering consultant in

WINGATE BOLLINS, '18, is retired, he lives in Milton, Massachusetts.

KENNETH B. WALTON, '24, is president of Kents Restaurant & Baking Company and Kents Gifts, both in Atlantic City, New Jersey.

George C. Caine, '25, is manufacturing massager for Tidewater Oil Company in Delawate City, Delaware. He lives in Landenberg, Pennsylvania. E. NEAL WELLS, '25, is an engineer for A.T. & T. Company, New York City. His home is in Ramsey, New Jersey.

George E. Farmurula, '26, is a partner in Davis, Hoxie, Faithfull & Hapgood in New York City. He lives in Bedford, New York.

Gerard V. Patrick, '28, is chairman of the board and chief executive officer of the York Division of Borg-Warner Corporation in York, Pennsylvania.

# CHARLES E. WORTHEN, '28, is retired, he lives in. Little Compton, Rhode Island. COLUMBIA

G. F. Coope, '14, is a director of Potash Company of America. He lives in Blue Hill, Maine.

EDWARD C. MEAGRER, '21, has been appointed to the Engineering Council at Columbia. He is retired vice president and treasurer of Texas Gulf Sulphur Company, and lives in Huntington, New York.

ROBERT LEE PECK, Jr., '23, is a consultant under contract to the R & D Labs of Northern Electric Company, He lives in Smithtown, New York. JAMES A. KEARNEY, '30, is associate director for

planning and development for Crucible Steel Company, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

WALTER A. LAPIERRE, '30, is chief of engineering services for the Diehl Division of Singer Company. His home is in Westfield, New Jersey,

ROBERT T. BROWN, '31, is administrative assistant to the vice president for marketing of Air Reduc-tion Company, Inc., Union, New Jersey. He lives in Mountainside.

THEODORE R. LOHN, '34, is president of Interna-tional Chimney Corporation, Buffalo, New York. His bome is in Williamwille.

NORMAN C. BETTZ, 36, is manager of production scheduling for International Nickel Company, Hantington, West Virginia.

Josep E. Dunaneso, '37, is a partner in Brumbaugh, Free, Graves & Donohue, New York City. He lives in Douglaston.

CLARE B. RISLER, '37, is a an advisory engineer for mining systems with Westinghouse Electric Corporation, Buffalo, New York. He lives in Williams-ville, New York.

EUGENE J. KALIL, '38, is now a member of the firm of Hopgood and Calimafde in New York.

WILLIAM VERMEULEN, '40, is manager of engineering for General Electric Company, Bridgeport, Connecticut. His home is in Fairfield.

DOORLAN C. BOYS, '42, is assistant supervisor of the Texaco Research Center, Beacon, New York. His home is in Fishkill.

WILLIAM T. GRIFFTHIS, '42, is a plant engineer for Du Pont in Philadelphia. He lives in Media, Pa.

Dr. George W. Michalec, '43, is the author of Precision Georing: Theory and Practice, published in October by John Wiley & Sons. Brother Michalec is an engineering consultant for General Precision, Inc. and associate professor of mechanical engineering at Stevens Institute of Technology. He reports that in September he underwent open heart surgery at Columbia-Presbyterian Medical Center for replacement of his aortic valve with a homograft. Brother Michalec lives in Pleasantville, New Yoek.

J. K. MLADENOV, '43, has been appointed director of transportation planning and programming in the New York State Department of Public Works. He lives in Delmar, New York.

DONALD D. SNAVELY, '43, is regional supervisor for H. H. Robertson Company in Atlanta, Georgia.

WILLIAM J. UHRICH, '43, is a systems engineer with Sylvania Electronics Systems, Waltham, Massachusetts. He lives in Burlington.

DONALD D. MACLASSON, '45, took a combined business and vacation trip to Europe last summer.

#### THE GEAR OF THETA TAU

HARRY W. FRITTS, '40, is a purchasing agent for Alaminum Company of America. His home is in Richmond, Indiana.

ACCUST E. JAPEGA, '46, is a professor of engineering at Trimity College, Hartford, Connecticut. His home is in West Hartford.

RICHARD H. WILSON, '48, has co-authored two chapters of a book entitled Executive Action in Marketing.

RICHARD G. BAXTER, '50, is a chemical engineer for Du Pont Company in Aiken, South Carolina.

JAY C. FERNANDER, '50, is manager of wholesale trades for the Loctite Corporation, Newington, Connecticut. He lives in Simsbury.

HERMAN BEREIR, '51, has been elected a trustee of Midwest Research Institute in Kansas City, Mo.

LAWRENCE E. PHILLIPS, JR., '51, is an associate of Loeb, Bhoades and Company, New York City.

ECCENE F. GORMAN, '52, is a project engineer for the Linde Division of Union Carbide Corporation, Newark, New Jersey. He is the author of a number of technical articles in Welding Journal, including a paper awarded the James F. Lincoln Cold Medal of the American Welding Society in 1902. Brother Comman lives in Morris Plains, New Jersey.

DAVIS M. BICIGMAN, '54, is a chemist for the Atomic Energy Commission, Washington, D.C. He lives in Silver Spring, Maryland.

JOHN B. CAMPBELL, '55, is principal engineer for the Bedford Laboratories of Raytheon Company in Bedford, Massachusetts. His home is in Sudbury.

D. JORN GRASSO, '55, is manager of the Management Advisory Services Department of Price Waterhouse & Company, Philadelphia. He lives in Swarthmore, Penesylvania.

FIRE W. KRAMDR, '55, is manager of fuel projects for Westinghouse Nuclear Fuel Division, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

HARRY M. SPATZER, '56, is deputy director of the Vertol Division of the Bosing Company. He lives in Crum Lynne, Pennsylvanta.

RUSSELL C. BACCACLINI, '63, is a mechanical engineer with Uninyal Inc., Wayne, New Jersey. His home is in Oakland, New Jersey.

GABRIEL A. ROUGA, '63, is a research engineer for

United Aircraft Besearch Labs, East Hartford, Connecticut. He lives in Manchester.

MICHAEL D. WORTHAM, '64, is a technical service engineer for Enjay Chemical Company, Baytown, Texas.

JORL M. SCHOUN, '65, is a research assistant in the Department of Electrical Engineering at Columbia. ROSERT A. BONNERIEND, '66, is a junior engineer in the Refinery Chemical Department of American Cyananid, Stamford, Connecticut. He lives in Bronx, New York.

NEH. FENCEREL, '06, is a student at Courant Institute, New York University.

STEPHEN K. STROBACH, '66, is with the Peace Corps' University Education Program in Bucaramanga, Colombia, South America.

#### MISSOURI AT ROLLA

MATTHEW P. BEAZELI, '20, is a senior partner in Wm. M. Taggart Company, St. Louis, Missouri.

WILLIAM M. KERLING, '23, needed something to do in retirement, so he became police magistrate and a justice of the peace in Falls City, Nebraska. He reports that it is very interesting work.

E. E. Bonzerson, '24, is an engineer with Mulberry Construction & Welding Company, Mulberry, Florida. His home is in Lakeland.

HARRY C. BOLON, 29, is retired; he lives in Rolla. E. A. CRAWYORD, '29, is project manager with the Lummus Company, Newark, New Jersey. His home is in Ridgewood.

HERMENT R. OKTERWALD, '30, is a retired U.S. civil servant. He is living in Kirkwood, Missouri.

REX MONROE, '32, is a manufacturers' representative in Whittier, California.

C. G. Heserr, '37, is sales manager for Punch Lok Company, Chicago, Illinois. He lives in Franklin Park.

Manutall W. Taylon, II, '37, is an engineer with the FPC, Washington, D.C. His home is in Hyattiville, Maryland.

George E. Maciness, '30, is a design engineer for Le-Tourneau Westinghouse in Peoria, Illinois.

Wellaw M. Kino, '42, is a technology utilization representative for NASA's George C. Marshall Space Flight Center. He is located in Santa Ana, California.

Jack H. Borryen, '43, is attending college in Hannibal, Missouri under vocational rehabilitation.

ROBERT C. RANKIN, '45, is a design engineer for Southern Pacific Company in Houston, Texas.

 A. SCHEINSMAN, '45, is a staff engineer for Shell Pipe Line Corporation in Houston, Texas.

James B. Bowman, '48, is chief engineer for the Terminal Railroad Association in St. Louis. He lives in Kirkwood, Missourt. S. F. JOHNSEN, '48, is mines plant maintenance superintendent for Kennecott Copper Corporation at the Ray Mines Division, Kearny, Arizona.

D. Romins, '48, is project manager for Morrison-Knudsen Company in Panama. They are doing construction of 48 kilometers of highway on the Interamerican Highway.

ROBERT M. ROCK, '48, is an engineer with the Federal Water Pollution Control Administration in San Francisco.

RALPH W. Ruwwe, '48, is a petroleum geologist in Wichita, Kansas.

DONALD G. SCHMIDT, '48, is director of research for H. Kramer and Company, Chicago, Illinois. He lives in Hinsdale.

JACK D. FOSTER, '49, is senior geologist for Sinclair Oil & Gas Company in Midland, Texas.

JOHN G. REILLY JR., '49, is administrative assistant for St. Joseph Lead Company in Balmat, New York. His home is in Gouverneur.

WILLIAM COOLBAUCH, '50, is chief metallurgist for Matthlessen & Hegeler Zinc Company, LaSalle, Illinois, He lives in Pera, Illinois.

Gerald C. Shelton, '50, is a human factors engineer for Sandia Corporation, Albuquerque, New Mexico.

 DEAN SHOPHER, '31, is manager of operation services for Kaiser Refractories, a division of Kaiser Aluminum and Chemicals, in Oakland, California. He lives in Lafayette.

JOHN THEIRS, '51, is a partner in Heinicke & Theiss, Consulting Engineers, in St. Louis, Missouri.

Joe E. Gasy, '52, is aviation section commander for the U.S. Army in Guatemala City, Guatemala.

Laland D. Beverage, '53, is an applications engineer for the Potomac Edison Company, Hagerstown, Maryland. He lives in Frederick.

BENNIE E. STEPHENSON, '53, is chief of the scheduling unit design branch of the Corps of Engineers in Fort Worth, Texas.

Jack M. WHERLER, '53, is employed as manager of value engineering by Commins Engine Company, Columbus, Indiana.

Searles T. Andreson, "54, is self employed in Salem, Missouri.

MASON GUNTHUR A. HELM, '55, is with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in Vietnam.

JOHN M. McCARTHY, '55, is an engineer with the Monsarto Company in East St. Louis, Illinois. He lives in St. Louis, Misson He

JAMES F. BURTON, '57, is products manager of Jefferson Printing Company in St. Louis. George O. Gravz, '57, is chief engineer in the field office of the General Services Administration, Richmond, Virginia.

C. A. WENTZ, '57, is a project development engineer with Phillips Petroleum Company is New York City.

THOMAS K. BOHLEY, '61, is a research engineer with Hewlett Packard Company, Colorado Springs. His home is in Manitou Springs, Colorado.

WAYNE B. RUCK, '61, is a project industrial engineer for Kawneer Company, Niles, Michigan.

CAPT. MYRON E. GRIZZO, '62, has completed a sixmonth ordnance officer career course at the Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland

JAMES O. GURST, 'RB, is a test engineer with Dunglas Aircraft Company in Sacramento, California. He is engaged in static testing of the SIVB stage of the Saturn V space wehicle. Brother Guest lives in Carmichael.

William H. Brancin, '65, is working for a Ph.D. in civil engineering at the University of West Virginia in Morgantown.

THOMAS K. GAYLORD '65, is working toward a Ph.D. in electrical engineering, specializing in solid state electronics and materials science, at Rice University in Houston, Texas.

ENS. NORMAN R. MENTER, '85, is serving with the U.S. Navy Chvl Engineer Corps at Romsvell Roads, Puesto Rico. Before entering OCS he was employed as a construction engineer with the Fenzel Construction Company of Jackson, Missouri.

ROCER FRANK VERSLUES, '66, is an associate engineer with the McDonnell Company, St. Louis. He lives in St. Ann. Missouri.

### ILLINOIS

K

HARRY DARRY, '17, was made the first honorary citizen of Abilene, Kansas in recognition of his leadership in developing the Eisenhower Center there.

J. E. Orr, '18, is a partner of Punch Lok Company, Chicago, Illinois.

GORDON S. HENLEY, '28, was the author of an article in the February 24, 1964 issue of Electrical World. He is president of Utilities Line Construction Co., Inc., Jenkintown, Pennsylvania.

BRICCE G. EATON, '30, is a senior advisory engineer

BRUCE G. EATON, '30, is a senior advisory engineer for the Westinghouse Electric Corporation, Baltimore, Maryland.

George L. Johnson, "31, is capital area manager of the Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation, Albany, New York. He lives in Troy.

CHARLES LUCKMAN, '31, has been appointed by Gov. Beagan to represent California on the 38-

state Educational Commission of the States. He is a member and former chairman of the Board of Trustees of the California State Colleges. Some of the recent projects of Charles Luckman Associates are the new Los Angeles Zoo, a downtown auditorium and convention center for the City of Phoenix, and the Forum in Inglewood, California, a large sports arena.

Col. John R. Webb, (Ret.) '32, is a sales engineer for Pitcher & Company, Woburn, Massachusetts. He lives in Boston. Brother Webb is past president of the Massachusetts Department of the Reserve Officers Association of the U.S., and is now a State Council member. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of the Boston Chapter of the Military Order of World Wars.

WILLIAM F. BARNES, '35, is a design engineer in the Systems Engineering Department of the Boeing Company. He is working on the Saturn/Apollo project. Brother Barnes has been with aerospace firms for the past 10 years; he has worked on the Atlas, Titan, and Saturn projects.

# UTAH

PAUL E. WILSON, '27, is manager of personnel development in the General Sales Division of Worthington Corporation, Harrison, New Jersey. He lives in Glen Ridge.

E. J. SMITH, '49, is with Canadian General Electric in Scarboro, Ontario.

Frederick L. Scholes, '61, is branch sales manager for Beckman Instruments Inc., in Palo Alto, California. He lives in Sunnyvale.

PAUL M. DIMOND, '66, is an associate engineer for the Boeing Company in Seattle, Washington.

JOHN E. PHILLIPS, '66, is an electrical engineer for General Electric in Syracuse, New York. His home is in Liverpool.

# ALABAMA

M

James H. Wingard, '22, is retired; he lives in Bradenton, Florida.

Barton L. Harris, '31, is chief of the Work Coordination Division, Post Engineer, at Fort Jackson, South Carolina. He lives in Columbia.

WILLIAM J. Lucas, '39, is a project engineer for General Cable Corporation, Bayonne, New Jersey. He lives in Holmdel.

FRANK E. BUNCE, '41, is a structures analyst for Grumman Aircraft, Bethpage, New York. His home is in Huntington.

James J. Dwyer, '43, is an operations research analyst for the U.S. Army Strategy & Tactics Analysis Group, Bethesda, Maryland. He lives in Potomac.

HAROLD A. JOHNSON, '43, is vice president of Photon Inc., Wilmington, Massachusetts. His home is in Norwood.

Louis Harris Pfau, '43, is president of Signal Engineering & Sales, Inc., Birmingham, Alabama.

VINCENT LAURIA, '47, is head of the Manufacturing Engineering Department of Airborne Instrument Laboratory, a division of Cutler-Hammer. He lives in Jericho, New York.

RICHARD E. ELY, '48, is a supervisory aerospace engineer at the Redstone Arsenal of the U.S. Army Missile Command. He lives in Huntsville, Alabama.

WILLIAM B. Speir, '49, is a staff engineer with Rust Engineering Company, Birmingham, Alabama.

WILLIAM C. STAPELTON, JR., '49, is professor of electrical engineering at the University of Alabama.

Remo John Carboni, '50, is an engineer scientist specialist for Douglas Missile and Space System Division in Santa Monica, California. He lives in Marina del Rey.

FRED E. ARMSTRONG, JR., '61, is the proud father of a son. Brother Armstrong is employed by the Trane Company in Birmingham, Alabama.

WILLIAM S. RAIFORD, '61, is a senior project engineer for Brown Engineering Company in Huntsville, Alabama.

DAVID R. SHAW, '63, is director of the Systems Development Department for the University of Alabama Hospitals and Clinics. He lives in Homewood, Alabama.

JOHN T. HUBBARD, JR., '64, married Betty Jean Perry in July at Huntsville, Alabama.

SAMUEL D. SANDERS, '64, married Sonja Gunderson in August in Albert Lea, Minnesota. They are living in Madison, Wisconsin.

ALVIN J. CONNOR, '65, has been commissioned a second lieutenant in the U.S. Air Force upon graduation from OTS at Lackland AFB, Texas. He was assigned to Wright-Patterson AFB, Ohio.

1/LT. BERNARD E. DIGIORGIO, '65, is in Vietnam with the 523rd Engineer Company. He is a platoon leader in the unit.

ROBERT G. PRIDDY, '65, married Martha Stebbins Falt in July in Huntsville, Alabama.

JOHN M. TROHA, '65, married Julanne Kay Vail in July in Reform, Alabama.

Joseph E. Durham, Jr., '66, married Betty Jane Bailey in June in Tuscaloosa, Alabama. They are living in Huntsville.

VINCENT W. SPARKS, '66, married Madeleine Rae Albert in June in Decatur, Alabama. They are living in Moulton.

# CARNEGIE TECH

N

Dr. John M. Daniels, Hon. '22, has retired as director of admissions at Mount Mercy College, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. He will continue to serve as an admissions consultant at the college. Brother Daniels is a Past Grand Regent of Theta Tau.

Paul F. Maurer, '22, is retired; he lives in Allentown, Pennsylvania.

Dr. Franklin H. Allison, Jr., '23, is vice president for research of Blaw-Knox Company, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

Thomas F. Brastow, '27, is product manager of the Industrial Packaging Department of the American Viscose Division of FMC Corporation, Philadelphia. He lives in Villanova, Pennsylvania.

James L. Davidson, Jr., '28, is manager of labor relations for the American Bridge Division of U.S. Steel, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

CHARLES K. CARTER, '31, is self employed as a manufacturers' agent in Boca Raton, Florida.

JOHN W. CLINGERMAN, '33, is a highway construction marketing representative for U.S. Steel Corporation, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

HARRY F. ZINSSER, '33, is manager of research and development for Copperweld Steel, Glassport, Pennsylvania. His home is in Bethel Park.

JOHN C. LATHAM, '36, is district manager for Leeds & Northrop Company, New York City. He lives in Chatham, New Jersey.

Charles D. Henderson, '40, is division manager for St. Joseph Lead Company, Monaca, Pennsylvania. He lives in Beaver.

ROBERT A. Bub, '42, is assistant plant manager for Mine Safety Appliances Company, Evans City, Pennsylvania. His home is in Gibsonia.

WILLIAM K. McALEER, '42, is director of the Latin American Division of H. B. Maynard & Company, Inc., Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

George O. N. Reed, '43, is assistant manager of Vibroflotation Foundation Company, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

QUENTIN J. HOFFMAN, JR., '48, is a senior engineer with Sperry Gyroscope Company, Great Neck, New York. His home is in Sea Cliff.

Paul D. Ohrman, '48, is a metallurgical engineer doing sheet and strip product metallurgy for U.S. Steel Corporation, Pittsburgh. He lives in Monroeville, Pennsylvania.

Francis P. Schierberl, '48, is manager of engineering for the Chandler Evans Division of Colt

Industries. He is located in West Hartford, Connecticut.

James O'Hara Denny III, '49, is director of research for the J. S. McCormick Company, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

Paul G. Hanna, '49, is a manager for Westing-house Electric Corporation, Pittsburgh, Pa.

## WISCONSIN

G. E. Meyer, '51, is manager of engineering development for E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, Wilmington, Delaware.



Paul L. Cowan, '52, is a salesman for resins for Du Pont in Dallas, Texas. He lives in Richardson.

RICHARD ALLEN PETERSON, '65, is a structural engineer for Skidmore, Owings & Merrell, Chicago, Illinois.

DWIGHT D. ZECK, '65, a graduate student in civil engineering at Wisconsin, has been awarded a \$2,500 research fellowship by the American Institute of Steel Construction, Inc.

## IOWA



Dr. Frederic T. Mavis, '22, is professor of mechanical engineering at the University of Maryland, College Park, Maryland.

Vern C. Price, '22, is retired; he lives in Centerville, Iowa.

M. J. Reid, '28, has been appointed assistant manager of manufacturing services of the Kodak Park Works of Eastman Kodak Company, Rochester, New York.

CORLISS L. BENSON, '41, is superintendent for the Dravo Corporation, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.

L. H. Sallen, '50, is program manager for Honeywell Inc. in St. Petersburg, Florida. His home is in Clearwater,

HAROLD R. MILLER, '54, is employed as a research specialist for Lockheed Missiles & Space Company in Sunnyvale, California. He lives in San Jose.

# VIRGINIA

Dr. Earnest J. Oglesby, Hon. '11, is retired; he lives in Charlottesville, Virginia.

JOSEPH L. LAGIGLIA, '35, is an underwriter for Home Life Insurance Company of New York in Virginia

Beach, Virginia.

JERRY L. THOMAS, Jr., '41, is a senior process supervisor for E. I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Richmond, Virginia.

#### THE GEAR OF THETA TAU

HENNY L. KINNER, '42, is professor of civil engineering at the University of Victimia.

LOUIS E. KILMARX, '45, is engineering manager for Scovill-Schrader Division in Dickson, Tennessee.

NEAL O. WADE, Jr., '40, is vice president of Johnson & Winsall, Inc., Springfield, Virginia. He lives in Bethesda. Maryland

Davio R. Brows, Jr., '30, head of the Fleet Bal-bitic Minile Geoballistics Division at the U.S. Naval Wespons Laboratory, Dahlgren, Virginia, has been awarded the Navy's distinguished civilian service award. The award recognizes his leadership and achievement in the development of the science of geoballistics and its application to the Polaris and Poseidon ballistic missile systems.

WILLIAM H. MORGAN, '52, has been promoted to manager of trade relations for Ethyl Corporation with headquarters in Baton Rouge, Louisiana. He carned his M.B.A. at the University of Houston in 1963. Brother Morgan and his wife have three daughters

George E. Saister, '52, is a project engineer with TRW, Inc., Cleveland, Ohio. He is a member of ASME, a registered P.E. in Ohio, and received his master's degree in mechanical engineering from Case Institute in 1958.

HARRY ROBERTHIAW, '64, is doing graduate work at the University of Virginia.

GARY W. BURDETTE, '65, is an associate systems engineer for IBM in Richmond, Virginia.

#### NORTH CAROLINA STATE

1949

TALLAPERRO CRAWFORD DICKERSON. '26, was recently recognized for his 40 years of service with Newport News Shipyard and Dry Dock Company. He is chief statistician for the company.

MARK SUMPERS, SR., '26, retired in 1960 as post-master in Ashville, North Carolina.

CHARLES E. HIMBARD, '29, has been named man-ager of the N.C. Fire Insurance Rating Bureau in Raleigh. He had been assistant manager since

W. Tilpusio Sarris, '29, has been named aenior vice president of the Newport News Shipyard and Dry Dock Company.

ARCHIE B. FREEMAN, '30, is regional program director for the U.S. Public Health Service in Boaton. He lives in Welleyley Hills, Massachusetts.

LELAND G. ATKINSON, JR., '33, is works engineer for Westinghouse Electric Corporation. He lives in Beaver, Pennsylvania.

CARL F. LANGE, '37, is a design process engineer

doing "Dacron" design for E. I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Delaware.

T. A. BIVENBARK, JR., 37, is a supervisory con-tract administrator for DCASD in Birmingham, Alabama.

M. S. HAYWORTH, '39, is secretary-treasurer of Brewer Paint & Wall Paper Company, Rocky Mount, North Carolina.

JAMES F. KELLY, '43, president of Aeroglide Corporation of Baleigh, has been elected chairman of the Rebel Chapter of the International Young Presiilent's Organization. The area covers eight states.

JAMES E. ADKINS, '46, is senior planning engineer for Western Electric Company in Winston-Salem, North Carolina.

EDWARD P. DAVISSON, '47, is general production manager of Armstrong Cork Company, Lancaster, Pennsylvania

VERNON M. BARNER, JR., '48, is a research engineer for Texaco Experiment Inc., Richmond, Vincinia,

ROBERT C. HINKLE, JR., '48, is quality assurance supervisor for Aluminum Company of America in Badin, North Carolina.

CHARLES M. RICE, '49, is a research engineer for America Enka Corporation. He lives in Candler, North Carolina.

DR. LAURENCE E. POTEAT, '50, is an associate professor of metallurgical engineering at Clemson University, Clemson, South Carolina.

JAMES P. RICKS, JR., '51, is owner and manager of Ricks Laundry & Cleaners, Edenton, N.C.

PAUL E. SMATHERS, '52, is operations staff officer at Ent AFB, Colorado. He lives in Colorado Springs.

JAMES A. LOWE, '54, is district engineer for Sylvania Lighting Products Inc., Charlotte, N.C.

HENRY O. FOSTER, '55, is a research associate for E. I. du Pont de Nemours. He lives in Newark, Delaware.

SAMUEL R. HARRILL, '56, is district sales minager for Raytheon Company in Atlanta. His home is in Doraville, Georgia.

Dr. Joe W. Rezce, '57, is an assistant professor at Auburn University, Auburn, Alabama.

WALTER C. TROMAS, Jr., 57, is chief methods and standards engineer for Hatteras Yacht Company, High Point, North Carolina.

Dan W. ABERNATHY, '58, is an associate of Bair & Associates, Auburndale, Florida.

ROBERT W. WATERS, '90, is a management services specialist for Ernst and Ernst, Baltimore, Maryland,

William W. Hopper, Jr., '61, is a construction engineer for M. W. Kellogg Company. He is located in Leaksville, North Carolina.

CHARLES A. STONE, '61, is a development engineer for Western Electric Company in Winston-Salem, North Carolina.

JOSEPH R. WHITE, Ju., '81, is an agent for Philadelphia Manufacturer's Mutual Insurance Company. He lives in Greenshoro, North Carolina.

V. E. CLAYTON, Jn., '64, is an associate engineer with IBM in Durham, North Carolina.

Lr. Davin E. Gusery, Jn., '65, is with the U.S. Army at Fort Illies, Texas.

R. A. NELSON, Jr., '65, is a graduate student at North Carolina State University in Winston-Salem.



1/Lt. Donald G. Peele, North Carolina State '65. (right) receives the U.S. Air Force Commendation Medal from Brig. Gen. Paul T. Cooper.

I/Lr. Donald G. Perle. 65, has been decorated with the U.S. Air Force Commendation Medal at Los Angeles Air Force Station, California. He was cited for meritorious service as a space vehicle engineer at the Space Systems Division.

Charles P. Barnow, '66, is engaged in construction and installation of nuclear power plants with General Electric Company in Clinton, Tennessee.

CHABLES L. BICCS, JR., '66, is a graduate student at Texas A & M University, working toward a master of science in nucleor engineering.

E. STEUART CHANKY, '66, is an engineer for Westinghouse Electric Corporation, Annapolis, Maryland. He lives in Harwood.

#### OHIO STATE



RAYMOND Q. ARMINGTON, '28, has been elected a director of Lubrizol Corporation. He has been president of Triax Company since 1990. Brother Armington is a director of numerous companies in Cleydand.

Eccan R. Bonnson, '29, is a supervisor for Bell Telephone Laboratories, Inc., Holmdel, New Jersey, He lives in Middletown.

CHARLES C. GRIFFTH, '35, is personnel director of Avildsen Tools & Machines, Inc., New York City. His home is in Ridgewood, New Jersey.

PAUL H. BOWEN, '40, is a senior engineer in the R & D Laboratory of Westinghouse Electric Corporation. He lives in Irwin, Pennsylvania.

VICTOR C. SMITH, JR., '43, is president of Victor C. Smith, Inc., paving contractor, in Fort Lauder-dale Florida.

RONALD FISH, '51, is plant manager of General Electric's Lamp Plant in Warren, Ohio.

R. F. Spannow, '52, is an electrical engineer with Bacharach Instrument Company, Pittsburgh. He lives in Monroeville, Pennsylvania.

FRANK A. SDAKO, Ja., '55, is an industry specialist in sales for Hooker Chemical of New York City. He lives in Cedar Grove, New Jersey.

LEO CARTER, '57, is co-author of an article, 'Low Pressure Evaporation,' in Chemical Engineering Progress, February 1966. He is a process development engineer with Eastman Kodak Company, Rochester, New York. He is also an evening school instructor for the Rochester Institute of Technology.

RALPH P. RESSMANN, '58, is industrial engineering manager for the Hoover Company. His home is in North Canton, Ohio.

CLOYD DUNCAN, '59, is employed by Hughes Aircraft Company, El Segundo, California. He lives in Los Angeles.

Casacarron R. Anneason, Ja., '63, is an engineer for E. I. du Post de Nemours & Co., Inc. in Florence, South Carolina.

Hanny L. Massesse, '83, has been commissioned a second leartenant in the U.S. Air Force upon graduation from OTS at Lackland AFB, Tesas. He has been assigned to Craig AFB, Alabama for pilot training.

JAMES R. HANNAMS, '66, is employed as a welding engineer at Hobart Brothers Company in Troy, Ohio. On Jameary 7 he was married to Mary E. Heumert of Troy. She is an assistant luyer at Koher's Jewelry Store there.

#### SYRACUSE

Care F. Worse, '25, has a consulting firm which has a contract for most of the new Syracuse University construction.

Emman S. Reysolles, '26, is a senior engineer for Mobil Oil Corporation, New York City. He Irves in Stanford, Connecticut.

WILLIAM H. Anams, '28, is a senior civil engineer for the New York State Department of Public Works in Syracuse.

MORREAL H. BLEAR, '28, is employed by General Electric Company in St. Petersburg, Florida.

EVERETTE D. BRYANT, '29, is retired; he lives in Thompson, Pennsylvania.

WILLIAM GIBLOW, '30, has a private practice of civil engineering in Lewiston, New York.

B. T. Harmen, '31, is a physical scientist for the U.S. Air Force in St. Louis, Missouri.

Orro H. Peters, 32, is principal power engineer in the Industrial Chemical Division of Allied Chemical Corporation in Fayetteville, New York.

JAMES Y. Howard, '33, is a product engineer for General Railway Signal Company, Rochester, New York. He lives in Spencerport.

MILTON S. PERINGTY, "34, is building manager and store superintensient for the Kleinhaus Company, Buffalo, New York. His home in Williamsville. WILLIAM E. CHAMBERLAIN, "37, is manager of sales engineering for Otis Elevator Company in New York City. He lives in Berkeloy Heights, New.

Jersey.

Charles W. Florinc, P.E., '37, is a manufacturers representative. His firm is C. W. Floring & H. R. Murray, Inc., Syracuse, New York.

Highermon H. Freynese, '37, is general superintendent for Consolidated Edison Company in New York City. His home is in Pleasantville.

LEE C. CASTLE, '39, is assistant superintendent of Forge No. 2 for Bethlehem Steel Company, Bethlehem, Pennsylvania.

MANFRED CLAYTON, '40, is a research associate at the University of Rhode Island, Kingston.

Howann O. Wann, '40, is a partner in St. John Associates, Binghamton, New York. He lives in Candor.

JACK W. COTTRELL, '41, is self employed as a surveyor in Manlius, New York.

FLOYD E. WHITE, '42, is a senior civil engineer with the New York State Department of Public

Works, Utica, New York. He lives in New Hart-

Louis H. Laussaru, Jr., '45, is manager of machinery advanced development for Carrier Air Conditioning Company, Syracuse. He lives in Dewitt, New York.

STERLING E. MAYO, JR., '45, is a sales engineer for Henry G. Richter, Inc., Mountainside, New Jersey, He lives in Metuchen.

Edward F. Burgynski, '48, is a general engineer for the U.S. Army Engineers, Fort Belvoir, Virginia. His home is in Arlington.

MARTIN J. JOHL, Js., '48, is owner of Martin J. Joel & Co., New York City. He lives in Scarsdale, New York.

BICKNO C. LAMEN, 48, is manuger of development engineering for Rockwell Manufacturing Company, Skanesteles, New York. He is a member of the Society of American Value Engineers and the Experimental Aircraft Association, and has presented value analysis seminars for several companies. His other interests include building, and is cutredly working on a sirvitor.

JOHN E. ZIEGLER, '52, is a sensor project engineer for Hammermill Paper Company, Eric, Pennsylvania.

J. Roszar Day, Ju., '53, is an electrical engineer for Dale Engineering Company, Inc., Utica, New York, His home is in Whitesboro.

WILLIAM J. HANNETT, '54, is a senior engineer for Carrier Air Conditioning Company, Syracuse, He lives in Dewitt, New York.

DONALD C. HUTCHINN, '56, is a senior civil engineer for the New York State Department of Public Works in Syracuse.

CLAY S. HARDER, Jr., '57, is a field superintendent for JGA Construction Corporation, Syracuse, New York. His home is in North Syracuse.

GLES C. Dr.G, '58, is a sensor research engineer for AVCO Corporation, Everett, Massachusetts. He lives in Wellesley Hills.

MARTIN E. MULLEN, '60, has been transferred to IBM's Washington data center as a systems engineer. He is living in Greenbelt, Maryland.

CLIPTOND A. CHAPT, '65, is a field engineer for Schlumberger Well Services in Lincoln, Illinois.

1/Lr. Louis A. Gross, '65, is operational duty officer in the communications center of the U.S. Army Strategic Communications Command in Bangkok, Thailand.

JAMES RUSTIK, '65, is an experimental engineer at Pratt & Whitney Aircraft. He lives in East Hartford, Connecticut. ROBERT E. SCHRAMM, '66, is a teaching assistant at Bensselaer Polytechnic Institute, Troy, New York. He is working towards his master's degree in electrical engineering

#### **UPSILON**

GROBGE F. BRANKAN, Hon. '27, dean of engineering at the University of Arkansas, has been elected president of Theta Xi Fraternity.

ALBERT B. HUBBARD, '28, is a research engineer for Rotron Besearch Corporation, Woodstock, New York.

B. FRANK BECKMAN, P. E., '33, is owner of Frank Beckman Commany in Fort Smith Arkansas

Gronge L. Sansbury, '37, is head of the Optical and Controls Section of Hughes Tucson Engineering Laboratory.

CAPT. JOHN B. RANDOLPH, '41, is administrative assistant and senior side to the deputy chief of naval operation (development). He lives in Alexandria, Virginia.

CLAUDE C. BRITTAIN, '48, is manager of lubrica-tion sales for the Eastern Region of Sinclair Befining Company. His home is in Atlanta, Georgia.

MAJOR HABOLD T. HAMILTON, '50, has completed the counterinsurgency course at the Air University, Maxwell AFB, Alabama. He will be assigned

JAMES M. FAWGETT, '60, is an engineer for West-inghouse Electric, Baltimore. He lives in Laurel, Maryland.

#### PURDUE



DONALD W. CHRISMAN, '42, is assistant director of research and engineering for the Martin Company, Baltimore. He lives in Towson, Maryland.

Norman W. Jerva, '56, is a program requirements engineer for General Electric Company in Philadelphia. His home is in Malvern, Pennsylvania,

JAMES G. GERROSCEY, '58, is a staff engineer for Martin-Marietta Corporation in Orlando, Florida.

JAMES N. DECISIO, '59, is a patent attorney at the Laboratory for Electronics. Norwalk, Connecticut. His law degree is from the George Washington University. Brother Dressner lives in Fairfield, Connecticut.

ROCKE, L. PARK, '59, is now field operations manager for the Hunt Paving Company, Inc., highway contractor in Indianapolis, Indiana.

Bill. Bunk, '65, is a chemical engineer for Dow Chemical Company in Midland, Michigan.

#### ARIZONA

George F. Zenross, '40, is a consulting mining engineer in Boulder City, Nevada.

THOMAS R. VAN FLEET, '49, is a purchasing agent for Union Carbide Corporation. New York City. He lives in Weston, Connecticut.

CAPT. HARRY E. KRUMLAUP, JR., '58, is a communy commander with the U.S. Army in Vietnam.

STEPHEN M. ZAPP. '64, is a member of the technical staff of Hughes Aircraft Company, Los Angeles. His home is in Hawthorne, California

### MONTANA TECH



DAVID JOSES, '35, is a mining engineer in real estate appraisals for the U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs, Washington, D.C. He lives in Arlington. Virginia.

ROBERT CORRETT, '40, has been elected president of the Montanu Tech Alumni Avsociation.

JOSEPH W. PICKARD, '41, is president of Ingersoll-Rand Philippines Inc., in Manila.

Curray Stolz, Hon. '50, has been elected president of the Montana Society of Engineers. ROBERT H. ROWE, 'SS, is a graduate student at

Montana Tech. SOUTH DAKOTA TECH

## ROBERT B. DONALISSON, '62, is an engineer for Mobil Oil Corporation, Bakersfield, California



BESTRAM A. MULCARY, '36, is chief of the Legislative Inquiries Division for NASA. He lives in Bethesda, Maryland.

WILLIAM B. BENN, '44, is manager of market development for Great Lakes Carbon Corporation, Niagara Falls, New York. He lives in Tunawanda.

RICHARD E. COLE, '47, is plant manager for Reynolds Metals Company in Sheffield, Alabama.

BOCER L. Noss, 37, is an industrial engineer for Speed Queen, division of McGraw-Edison Corpu-ration, Ripon, Wiscon. He is working on special projects for the vice president of manufacturing

CHARLES LEE LYRISS, '61, is an engineer for General Electric Company in Philadelphia. He lives in Malvern, Pennsylvania.

2/Lt. DAVID F. L'ESPERANCE, '66, is the communding officer of C Battery, 2nd Battalion, 41st Artillery. He is stationed 46 kilometers from Frankfurt, Germany. His commund includes six selfpropelled 155 mm. howitzers and approximately 90 mes.

#### GEORGE WASHINGTON

ГВ

BENJAMIN C. CRUICK-SHANKA, Hon. '20, is professor emeritus of mechanical engineering; he lives in Washington, D.C.

Jones B. Brasez, '32, is a contract officer with the United Nations in New York City. He lives in Larchmont, New York.

H. VELPEAU DABLING, "33, is president of Transportation Consultants, Inc., Washington, D.C. His home is in McLean, Virginia.

RETHEN F. LEATHERWOOD, '33, is retired as a civil engineer for the Corps of Engineers of the U.S. Army. He lives in Silver Spring, Maryland.

Jone S. Sherrey, '37, is assistant vice president of the Engineering Department of Aetos Life & Casualty, Hartford, Connecticut. His home is in West Hartford.

Joan E. Parsons, '38, is a staff engineer for C & P Telephone Company, Washington, D.C.

JAMES C. ROBERTSON, Jr., '38, is associate director for engineering and construction in the Department of Sanitary Engineering for the District of Columbia. He lives in Arlington, Virginia.

Enward A. Baker, '59, is president of E. A. Baker Company, Inc., Tarema Park, Maryland. He lives in Rockville. JULIUS C. RITTER, '42, is head of the Metal Fabri-

cation Division of Boston Naval Shipyard. He lives in Lexington, Massachusetts.

MORTON RABINEAU, '43, is an electrical engineer for the Department of Defense, Washington, D.C.

GROWGE F. GENEVADER, '44, is an engineer working on weather satellites at the Goddard Space Flight Center in Greenbelt, Maryland. He lives in Silver Spring.

W. STANLEY MACHEN, '44, is self employed as a land surveyor. His home is in Hyattsville, Md.

GROBGE PIDA, '47, is a physicist doing sound research at the Naval Research Laboratory, Washington, D.C. He lives in Arlington, Virginia.

CLEN H. BALLOWE, '49, is executive vice president of the John A. Volpe Construction Company, Washington, D.C. His home is in Accoleek, Md. ROBERT S. BURNS, '53, is a structural engineer for the General Services Administration, Washington, D.C. He lives in Falls Church, Virginia.

Joses E. Dodor, '54, is a senior engineer for Atlantic Research Corporation, Alexandria, Virginia. His

George W. Wacner, '54, is an aerospace R & D engineer for NASA's Electronic Research Center, Cambridge, Massachusetts. He lives in Beverly.

Paut. A. Rober, Jn., '56, is a physical science administrator for the Defense Supply Agency in Alexandria, Virginia, He lives in Springfield.

John R. Manning, '57, is chief patent counsel at NASA's Electronics Research Center in Cambridge, Massachusetts. His home is in Needham.

ROBERT C. KNOWLES, '58, is section head of RF and Microwave for Vitro Electronics, Silver Spring, Maryland. He lives in Washington.

Invrn H. Schick, '58, is director of extension at Montgomery Junior College, Rockville, Maryland. He resides in Silver Spring.

HERBERT S. WEKINSON, '61, is a senior engineer for Deco Communications Department of Westinghouse Electric in Leesburg, Virginia. He lives in Silver Spring.

ELIOT D. COREN, '63, is a research electronic engineer at the U.S. Naval Research Laboratory, Washington, D.C. His home is in Silver Spring, Md.

MILLARD E. CARR, '55, is a general engineer at the Naval Facilities Engineering Command, Washington. He lives in Sutland. Maryland.

Gordon E. Davison, '65, is a reliability engineer for Martin Marietta Corporation in Orlando, Fla.

ELY G. FIRELOWITZ, '65, is a structural engineer doing research at the David Taylor Model Basin, Cardenock, Maryland. He lives in Silver Spring.

FRANK Mov, '65, is a project engineer at the Naval Ship Systems Command, Washington, D.C.

Exs. David Lee Word, '65, is a supply corps officer with the U.S. Navy, Athens, Georgia.

#### LOUISVILLE

 $\Delta B$ 

Dr. Wilburn E. Keller, 31, is vice president of Stone & Webster Engineering Corporation, Carden City, New York. He lives in New Hyde Park.

JOSEPH WOLF, '45, is now doing business as Joe Wolf, Realtor, in Louisville, Kentucky.

CLEFF NEELV, '53, is assistant editor of Chemical & Engineering Neura. He is located in Walldorf, Cermany.

WILLIAM L. McCammon, '60, is a process superintendent for Firestone Synthetic Fibers Company, Hopewell, Virginia.

LEE OCHEN, Ja., '62, was married in May to Ann Wellman by the Nev. JAMES B. GUFFEY, Louisville 62. Brother Ogden is in the Plant Engineering Department of General Electric, Appliance Park, Louisville, Kentucky.

Dr. Morgan S. Wattir, '62, is a staff engineer at IBM's Center for Exploratory Studies in Rockville, Maryland. He lives in Silver Spring.

#### WAYNE STATE

EB b. Evenew VLASON, '87, has been awarded his doctorate by Wayne State University. Brother Vlasov was born in Latvia, which he and his family fled at the end of World War II. He

came to the United States in 1950, he became a citizen while attending Wayne State. Brather Vlacov is now employed as an engineering specialist for LTV-Michigan, where he formulates and solves problems related to LANCE manile flight dynamics. He reads and speaks four languages and dynamics. He reads and speaks four languages and Attramatical Society. He lives with his wife and daughter in Warren, Michigan.

WALTER BURY, '64, is an associate engineer with Consumer's Power Company, Jackson, Michigan,

#### UTAH STATE

DEAN D. F. PETERSON, has returned to the campois after spending a year in Washington, D.C. on the staff of the Office of Science and Technology. He handled water resources re-

search, and was also chairman of the Committee on Water Resources Research of the Federal Council for Science and Technology.

#### WASHINGTON (SEATTLE)

TORDY HUNDFUREN, '64, is a utilities engineer for U.S. Steel Corporation, Pittsburg, California. His hume is in Astioch, California.

#### DETROIT

I B

PAUL M. ALT, '65, is a graduate student at the University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. He is living in Dupont, Pennsyl-

THOMAS C. WERNER, '65, is an assistant civil engineer for New York State in Buffalo. His home is in Cheektowaga, New York.

### Letters to the Editor

Dear Brother Franklin:

Ralph Nusser was at my home a couple of nights ago, and when I told him the story of my Theta Tau pin he urged me to write and tell you about

I. After graduating from the University of Kanasian in 1916 (Bs. in CE.), I worked for the American Beidge Company at Cary, Indiana for a time, then went to Tolas, Oklahoma with the Oklahoma work of the Cary, Indiana for a time, then graduated the Cary of th

Now in the fall of 1943 I received a phone call in Kansas City from a woman asking if I was the Arthur W. Templin who had once owned a small gold pin with some pearls mounted in a circle? I was, of course, and arranged to meet the woman the next evening at her home.

I identified the pin by telling her that it had the word Zeta and the figure 64 on the back. She had found the pin the day before while cleaning up a vacant apartment on Linwood Averme in Kansas City, Missouri.

The Hanner and Tongs had been removed, but the rest of the pin was as good as new. Not too had for a 26-year absence! And was I glad to get it back.

I retired three years ago after 30 years with the Builders Steel Company in North Kansas City and am spending most of my time relaxing and traveling.

Fraternally yours, ARTHUR W. TEMPLIN, Kannar '16 3445 Coleman Boad Karoas City, Missoori 64111

Dear Brother Franklin

Following my graduation from Michigan Tech in March 1655 (although my class was 1954) and AFROTIC. I entered active duty with the USAF and spent two years doing technical intelligence works at Wirth-Patterson Art Force Base in Dayton, Obio. This tour of duty was preceded by you mouth of engineering trainee work at the

Light Military Electronics Division of General Electric in Utica, New York, but can hardly be counted as significant employment since my call

to active duty was imminent.

Marving time while in the Air Force to reflect upon the metric freezing to and living in my native state and working for a firm engaged in consumer product activity. I joined the Head engaged in consumer product activity. I joined the Head engaged in the season of the

timal products.

The days spent as a undergraduate living in
the old Beta chapter beams on College Normathe old Beta chapter beams on College Normathe College of the Section of the S

I look forward to receiving the future issues of

THE GEAR.

Sincerely in H & T, C. A. Roaentrion, Michigan Tech '54 Box 256, Route 2 Stevensville, Michigan 49127

Dear Brother Franklin:

Your good letter of October 25 and the enclosed copy of the new Theta Tau Song Book came as a very pleasant suprise, you may be sure. I showed the song to my wife, who is a real English scholar, and her comment was "This is one of your early indiscretions! I hadn't beart about!"

As to the song and just how I happened to concoct it, I'm afraid that after half a century I don't remember anything about the circumstances.

I have always been interested in music, and this together with my interest in engineering has caused me to lead a deable life. I put myself a control of the control of the

selected a Hall Organ, trust in West Hav

Connection, which was only installed and turned out to be so good that I soon found myself elemenstrating it for the company's prospects. I storn appointed me their representative for Minnessets and the surrounding states. I worked for them full the surrounding states. I worked for them full the next few years. In 1916 through Mr. Losis W. Hill, president of the Corat Northern Radinad, who had a suggitized Archina Residence Organ in his when had a practical monopoly of the readoutal companion of the companion of the production of the control of the control of the control of the when had a practical monopoly of the readoutal companion of the control of the control of the when had a practical monopoly of the readoutal companion of the control of the when had a practical monopoly of the readoutal companion of the control of the when had a practical monopoly of the readoutal to Chicago and these I because the control of the control of the product the control of the con

position and a boychoir I was in the Navy in 1917-18, and in 1922 was promoted to Pacific Coast manager and vice president of the Aeolian Company of California, and continued until the firm was taken over by another concern. In 1925 I built a home on the coast at Palos Verdes with a pipe organ in it, where I lived until my retirement in 1956. When my old West Haven company learned I was free they appointed me their representative for the Coast and I remained with Hall until World War II put all organ companies out of business. All this time I was organist and choirmaster of St. Luke's Church in Long Beach, where I developed a fine boychoir which became well known as St. Lake's Charisters. The movies heard my kids over the radio and began to call us for movie work, and from 1930 to 1950 we sang in 89 movies in all the major and most of the minor studios, with all the big stars of the era, including six pictures with Jeannette McDonald, and with Bing Crosby, Grace Moore and many others. In 1944 we signed a contract with Capitol Records and with our 60 boys and men we made four albums which sold well over a million records.

million records.

In 1940 when the organ business folded 1 know
1d have to depend on music from them on, so want to University of Southern California and stuniels.

In the control of the control of the control of the My engineering training was invaluable in the organ business at it enabled me to make all my own factory drawings and organ layouts, something most organ alternative couldn't do. In South My there is not the control of the control of the control of the size with their music, traching organ and conducting and training their soloists, but since the recent upbeaval in the Catholic Church the Pranciscans base given up the splendid musical policies they

You are aware from the foregoing that I have had no contact with the engineering profession since college and I don't believe I've seen a Theta. Tau man since I left Minnespolis. I remember many of my brothers very well indeed and hope I may hear from some of them.

Again thacking you for the songbook, and with

all good wishes, I remain

Sincerely yours in H & T, WILLIAM RIPLEY DOIN, Minnesota '14 545 El Bosque Road Santa Barbara, California 93103

## **Chapter News**

The Corresponding Secretaries were asked to describe chapter service projects in their Gran letters this issue. Essentially a service project is any chapter activity which is beneficial to persons or organizations outside the chapter itself. There is a wide variety of activities undertaken by the chapters. Not only does the recipient of the service benefit, but the Theta Tous who participate derive some direct benefit also. A number of these activities also show our Fraternity with its hest foot forward and we derive some important benefits in public relations.

Readers of the chapter letters will notice that there are several service projects which are com-non to many chapters. This is particularly true in professional activities-Engineers' Week, in the engineering open house, EIT seminars, professional development programs. Beyond this, there are community projects and special Christmus projects with parties for orphans being a favorite.

It is a real tribute to many of our chapters that they engage in a curiety of worthy projects which show concern for human welfare. Engineers all too often carry a stereotyped image which does not include service to others. Perhaps the outstanding job some of the chapters do will impire better efforts at other chapters to launch similar activities on their own campuses.-WEF

#### DELTA CHAPTER



During the past semester Delta Chapter sponsored a numher of professionally oriented activities. Speakers were invited to present their views concerning professional engineering In cosponsorship with ASME, Delta Chapter invited the student body to a lecture on "An Engineer's Transition from Col-

lege to Industry" given by Mr. Edward Ince of Eastman Kodak Company. Those in attendance were favorably impressed with the discussion. The Chapter has instituted an informal coffee

hour. Several faculty members are invited to join with students in informal discussion on any topic. One of the favorite subjects seems to be sports car racing. The meetings open to all students, give the professors a chance to meet with the stu-dents on a social basis. The response to this pro-gram from both faculty and students has been very favorable, prompting us to continue these informal get-togethers.

The Chapter celebrated Founders' Day by dining at the ploth Brown Derby Restaurant in Shaker Heights.

Our plans for the current semester include distribution of pamphlets to the faculty to increase their awareness of Delta Chapter. We look for-ward to a successful semester for our actives and pledges.

We would like to take this opportunity to ask alumni of Delta Chapter to correspond with us and give us ideas and assistance which will help in improve our Chapter's operations, and become the best Chapter of Theta Tau.

DANIEL GEORGE WOLF Corresponding Secretary

#### ZETA CHAPTER



Since Theta Tau is a profes-sional fraternity, Zeta Chapter directs most of its outside activity and projects toward the engineering students and faculty of Kansus University. In

the fall Zeta Chapter and the School of Engineering sponsor the annual Engineering Homecoming, during which many KU alumni in engineering re-turn to visit the school. During Christmas the men in the house help underprivileged children in the Lawrence area by donating toys they bought for

In the spring we sponsor the Engineers in Training (EIT) seminars at KU. We also usually hold a Women's Engineering Banquet in the spring when all the women engineering students in the school are invited for a dinner and honored for choosing the field of engineering.

Zeta's most widely recognized project is the entranceway that we build each year for the Engireactively that we found sain year for the engineering Esposition. As the cover of the last edition of Tire Gasat shows, the entranceway attracts the attention of the public and brings them into the Esposition. We are presently trying to decide on a design for this year's Engineering Exposition entranceway which we hope will be one of the most evecatching in many years. ALAN R. ARKLL

Corresponding Secretary

#### THETA CHAPTER



Theta Chapter has two main fields of service to Columbia School of Engineering and Applied Science: orientation lectures and assisting in the administration of Engineering Dean's Day. The orientation lectures

are an annual function at Co-lumbia, used to introduce freshmen and sophomores to the departments which they will join in their upperclass years. Since many students are unacquainted with the requirements-both academic and professional—of the fields that they will be working in, these lectures have always proven

valuable nod informative. Don't Dy is an animal convocation of the foculty and alumni to present the most recent changes and developments in both the school itself and in professional engineering. The affair strengthens itse with the alumni of the school itself and in professional engineering. The affair strengthens itse with the alumni of the school is a whole, and we in Theta Chapter use it to develop close the with our own alumni brothers. In this regard, we cat as hosts for the day, acting as guides and subernational ruring as a listion between the present and

#### STEVEN J. Ross Corresponding Secretary

#### IOTA CHAPTER



At Iota Chapter most of our members are also members of social fraternities, and we are able to initiate some of the best students on campus. We take part in many projects throughout the semester to either perform a service for

others or to belp develop the spirit of professionalism. Among our activities are included the selection of a Freshman of the Year, the publication of a school calendar, and organizing the Uely Man Contest.

The Ugly Man Contest, which is presently being hold, is sponsored each year by lota Chapter on behalf of the March of Dines. Each organization on behalf of the March of Dines. Each organization of components of the Contest of the March the Contest of the Contes

Another project in which lots Chapter is taking part this semester is the annual Engineers' Day held by the school. This day is presented to give high school suddents who are interested in engineering a chance to visit our campus. We take part by operating a slepby which will give prospective operating a slepby which will give prospective keeping with the purpose of our Fraternity—to develop a quirt of professionalism.

DAVID L. OTTO Corresponding Secretary

#### LAMBDA CHAPTER



National Engineers' Week was an especially busy time for Lambda Chapter. The Engineering College sponsored departmental displays designed for the interest of non-engineering as well as engineering students. We at Lambda constructed and

as well as engineering students.

We at Lambda constructed and
to give viewers a composite look at the world of
engineering. While emphasizing the interdepend-

ence of engineering disciplines, we also sought to demonstrate to engineering students what Theta Tau could do for them, and what they could do

for Theta Tau.

Lambda Chapter provided maps of the Engineering Building to facilitate finding displays and departments. We also had the pleasure of conducting the Queen Contest. The Queen resimed over the week's events, most notably the heard growing contest.

BRUCE BENTLEY
Corresponding Secretary

#### MU CHAPTER

TUSCALOOSA ALA.

Mu Chapter has been very active in the College of Engineering. This year we have sponsured several projects both for the University of Alabama and the College of Engineering. Last semester the pledge

class built 13 boxes for The Engineering News, the College of Engineering monthly newspaper. These boxes were placed in key locations in the engineering buildings for the convenience of students.

Theta Tan also acted as corponsor for the Distinguished Engineering Lecture series. Ms (Chapter members checked attendance at these lectures and thereby kept records of attendance by each department. This attendance is part of the criteria

organization. In a Automatica is part of the Citeria for selecting the outstanding technical society.

On Engineers Day, Theta Tau members set up an information booth for visitors. We also provided guides for many high school groups which came to see the projects presented by all the technical societies.

Two of our members served the university by distributing the Student Government Association weekly bulletin to all the fraternities, sororities, and domaitories.

Theta Tau has also made several contributions to civic organizations in the form of financial donations. Such denations include the Salvation Army, YMCA, and a local children's home.

Mu Chapter is looking forward to next fall when we hope to be able to move into a different house. There are several locations which will become available. A committee of four members has been appointed to negotiate with the university for housing for the Chapter.

ROBERT B. THOMPSON Corresponding Secretary

#### XI CHAPTER



Xi Chapter has in the past been lay in the performance of service projects. However, the last two years have seen it. Chapter more active in this area. Activities of recent semesters include participation in blood drives, the Engineering Exposition, high school visitations, all-campus speakers, and all-campus selections. Xi Chapter is aiming for 100% participation in the forthcoming university blood drive. This blood drive is held twice yearly at the university.

The subject for our display at the Engineering Exposition will be the rapidly growing field of biomedical engineering. A mechanical arm will be operated by nerve impulses of volunteer participants in the audience. The nerve impulses will be amplified to move the mechanical arm. A short slide show is also planned in order that the audience will more fully appreciate this new and growing field of engineering.

High school visitation of potential engineering students will be a joint venture of the local chapter of the Wisconsin Society of Professional Engineers and Xi Chapter. These visitations give high school. students the facts about engineering as a profession

and as a college course of study

All-campus speakers are sponsored each semester by Xi Chapter. The most recent program was a panel discussion featuring the interviewers from a few of the leading industrial firms. Among the topics discussed were the perfect college graduate, best courses to take while at school, the highest paying job vs. the one with the greatest advancement potential, and the desirability of graduate school training.

Another Chapter activity has been the operation of the engineering campus election booth in the recent all-university election.

> DAVID F. MEER Corresponding Secretary

## OMICRON CHAPTER

IOWA CITY IOWA

The men of Omicron Chapter are busy heading various committees for the annual Engineers' Mecca Week being held March 11th through 18th. Each year, the first two days of this celebration are

devoted to an open house at the Engineering Building. Each of the five engineering departments-mechanical, electrical, civil, chemical, and industrial-sponsors a display aimed at familiarizing the layman and prospective engineering students with engineering at the University of Iowa. Theta Tau also provides coffee and doughnuts for

open house visitor

Theta Tau brothers can also be found in charge of other Mecca committees such as the Mecca Smoker and the Mecca Ball. The Mecca Smoker enables the student engineers to display their writing and theatrical ability by presenting "skits" to their fellow engineers. St. Patrick candidates for the outstanding engineering student for that year and the Mecca Queen candidates are presented and voted on by the student engineers and faculty. Awards for outstanding achievement by student engineers are also presented at the smoker.

Mecca Week is climated with the Mecca Ball Faculty, student engineers, and their guests dance to a name hand and enjoy the atmosphere provided by the beautiful decorations in the St. Patrick tra-

dition. St. Patrick and the Mecca Oveen are crowned to bring another Mecca Week to a close. DOCCLAS DE NIO

Corresponding Secretary

#### PL CHAPTER

CHARLOTTERVILLE

In the last year Pi Chapter has initiated several programs designed to better orientate the engineering students to the We university community. We have sought to acquaint the

first year engineers with the facilities of the various denartments, the degree options from which he can choose, and the functions of the student gov-

erning bodies.

In order to familiarize the students with the location of the departmental buildings, the brothers of Pi Chapter conducted tours of the engineering complex. The touring service was made available to all engineering students and was offered for a week in order to give all those interested a chance to participate. The times of the various tours and the departments which they would cover were posted in the lobby of the engineering building. posted in the soor or the engineering the four was led by a brother who was majoring in the respective department. Highlights of the tours included explanation and demonstration of research equipment and a question and answer period with a professor in the department.

In the second phase of our program the engineers

were invited to attend discussion sessions designed to aid the students in their choices of majors. The third and fourth year brothers from the various branches of engineering held meetings for those interested in their particular field. At these dis-cussion sessions students learned about the type of work they could expect to perform after graduation. The courses which they would take in a certain major were outlined with a short explanation of the nature of each course. After hearing just what a certain kind of engineer does, the students were encouraged to ask questions about anything not covered in the presentation.

To wrap up our orientation program, we compiled information about the student governing organizations along with other facts of interest to the student. We assembled these summaries into a pamphlet which was distributed to each first year man. Copies were also made available to upperclassmen at a booth located in the engineering building. In addition to the summaries of the function and purpose of the student government bodies, the pamphlet contained an explanation of Theta Tau and the phone numbers of university officials.

These programs were well received by the students and we feel made a significant contribution to their understanding of the opportunities open to them at the university. Theta Tau received much favorable miblicity from these programs, and the administration expressed its thanks to the brothers for their efforts.

> WILLIAM SILAS GARRETT, IN Corresponding Secretary

#### RHO CHAPTER



Service projects are an inte-gral part of Rho Chapter's activities. Our main community project is our annual Christ-

max party for a group of chil-dren from the North Carolina State School for the Blind. The brothers engage in sports activities and mames with those who are not totally blind. After an afternoon of vigorous activity, each child is presented with a gift of fruit and candy, and the group as a whole is pre-sented with a gift recommended by their housemother. The brothers usually enjoy this party as much if not more than the children. We believe that each chapter would benefit from a project of

this kind. Rho Chapter also has many campus activities. We assist the Engineers' Council in many projects including the Engineers' Fair and the St. Patrick's Day Dance. For the Engineers' Fair, the brothers operate an information booth to assist the visitors on campus in locating the various exhibits. Rho Chapter also works with various service groups on cumpus on projects which include the Campus

Chest fund drive The Chapter is always searching for new projects to benefit the community, the college, and the students at North Carolina State University.

WILLIAM J. SWAIN Corresponding Secretary

#### SIGMA CHAPTER



At Sigma Chapter our major service project, which is in its first year, is the Theta Tao tuturing service which we hold weekly for freshmen. With the cooperation of Deans Yarrington and Marshall of the College of Engineering, Ron Dowell arranged for a room to be reserved for the tutoring session every Wednesday evening from 7:00 to 9:00 p.m.

Also, Dean Yarrington arranged to have the tutoring session announced by all instructors in the engineering graphics classes (a course which all freshmen must take). Other publicity included weekly notices in the Engineering College News. The subjects tutored are mathematics, chemistry, and engineering graphics, with two tutors in each subject. Tutoring is done primurily on an individ-ual rather than a group basis. Response by the freshmen has been fairly good, turnouts have ranged from about five to 20. The same six tutors do not totor every week; a rotation has been set up with the 10 to 12 brothers who volunteered to tutor. We feel that by offering this tutoring service, we are not only serving the College of Engiovering and the freshmen themselves, but also publicizing Theta Tau in the process. In fact, several of the freshmen we've butored have attended a rush function.

Besides managing the tutoring service, this quarter has been an active one at Sigma Chapter. Attending the "Sea Cruise" party in February were five brothers from Delta Chapter at Case. They stayed at the Sigma house for the weekend. Delta

Chapter plans to reciprocate by having a joint party in Cleveland sometime next fall.

Many activities are also planned for nest quar-Many activities are also planned for next quar-ber. Ot primary interest and importance to alumni is the ACE Day (Annual Conference on Engineer-ing to be held here at Ohio State on May 12. On this evening, a banquet will be held for the Sigma Chapter alumni. Another planned function is the annual inter-chapter picnic, hosted this year by Iota Beta Chapter. This picnic will be held in early May and all Central Region chapters will be invited. Then in late May will be the annual spring formal which will complete a successful year for Sigma Chapter.

HONALD A. SCHWARTZ Corresponding Secretary

#### TAU CHAPTER

SYRACUSE service projects is that of tutoring other students in the School

Though service projects constitute a small part of Tau Chapter's activities, they are nonetheless actively pursued throughout the year. One of the most established

of Engineering. Brothers are contacted by phone or in person at the chapter house, and an appointment is made between the student needing help and a brother proficient in the appropriate subject. Another service spongored by brothers of Tau Chapter is the annual Engineers Ball. The affair is open to not only members of the college faculty and students, but also engineers living outside the university in the Syracuse area. Everyone who attends has a wonderful time and returns with a new and/or improved impression of Syracuse Uni-

versity and Theta Tau Fraternity. More recently (with the acquisition of a chapter house) Tau Chapter brothers have installed a radio amateur communications setup. Three of the brothers hold general class amateur licenses and also hold memberships to RACES (Radio Amateur Civil Emergency Services). This makes the Theta Tau chapter house a site for the relay of civil defense communications during a national or local emergency. Further, emergency supplies or equipment can be summoned for the neighborhood in the advent of a catastrophe by radio communications through the local Civil Defense—State Police, fire, and hospital—network.

Finally, during the recent Engineers' Week activities held at Hotel Syracuse for all local encineers, brothers participated by counseling outstanding orientated high school seniors about engineering. Moreover, high school seniors interested in attending S.U. are conducted on tours provided by Theta Tau brothers. In this way prospective engineering students have a chance to view engineering before commencement of study, and even if they decide against an engineering career, they still will have a better understanding of our profession.

George Louveles Corresponding Secretary



Ray Foisset (left) helps a student with his chemistry lab report at one of Sigma's tutoring sessions.





Bob Tabke, Kathy Southcomb (in background), and Susie Albrecht help Steve and Kim unwrap their presents at the Phi Christmas party.



Courad Palumbo (right) helps a freshman with an engineering graphics problem during one of Sigma's tutoring sessions.



Hob Tabke (seated at head of table), Susie Albrecht, Jim Walter, and Kathy Southcomb (partially hidden) act as foster parents for Kim and Steve at dinner.

#### UPSILON CHAPTER



Upsilon has proposed two service projects this spring: first, the members and pledges are to speak during Easter about undertaking an engineering career, and second, the

Taus are to distribute pumphlets about engineering to incoming freshmen next semuster. According to most of the members onestioned, high school guidance counselors discourage students from choosing an engineering career. The above proposals are an attempt to remesly this situation and to encourage more

interest in the engineering profession.

Our other projects included participation in Engineers' Week, an accelerated professional development program, and work toward a new chapter

Engine Week began on Sunday, March 12 with a Theta Tan banquet honoring the St. Patricia candidates. The events of the week included a stag hanquet on Thursday night at which awards were given to the best and worst instructors and the best and worst beards were announced. The following night a rally was held which featured the St. Patricia candidates, and finally on Saturday there was a tug-of-war with the agriculture students, an engineering department open house, and the Engineers' Ball at which the St. Patricia and St. Pat were amounced. Under the leadership of Theta Tan, the Engineering Council (representa-tives from engineering societies included) made the week a complete success.

In an effort to better our professional development program, chairman Steve Freeman obtained two fine speakers-alumnus members Haden, Upvilon '58, and Neal Harmon, Upsilon Hon, '63, and is hoping to obtain a third.

Perhaps our most important task to date has been obtaining a permanent chapter house. This problem has been with us for the last three years. our present lease will expire in June of next year. Our Articles of Incorporation have returned from Little Rock and the alumni clob has been working closely with us. The bug now seems to be the same as with many other chapters-finances. Donations from alumni and efforts to overcome the financial unbalance have been made. Much work is yet ahead of us here at Upsilon before this project is successfully concluded

#### PHI CHAPTER



As a member of Purdue's Interfraternity Conference, Phi participutes in IFC community service projects as well as our own projects. This year in conjunction with the IFC, the brothers have participated in Campus Chest and Heart Fund drives. Present plans call for par-

tempation in the annual IFC comrenovate an old home, rebuilding and redeenrating it to serve as a youth center.

Phi Chapter also sponsors an annual orphans' party before Christmas and the brothers assist our elderly widowed neighbor by shoveling her walk in the winter and helping keep up her yard in

the spring and fall.

This year Phi held its annual 'Lil Urchin's Party on Sunday, December 18 at the chapter house. We obtained the names of two needy children from the area through the local Red Cross. Allotting \$15 per child from chapter funds (for clothes) and requesting an additional \$1.00 per brother (for toys), presents were purchased over several weekends and were wrapped to be spread under the tree after it was put up. The Red Cross supplied us with the clothing sizes for our two urchins, Kim and Steve, aged 5 and 7. The tree was bought and decorated the day before the party in con-junction with our winter theme dance, "Swiss Chalet," and the presents put under it then.

Brothers and their dates were foster parents for the afternoon, picking the children up, assisting them at dinner, and stacking off to the side the many presents Kim and Steve eagerly ripped open. Santa (Brother Roger Dycus) was on hand to distribute the presents. After all the presents were opened and carefully examined, the foster parents returned two happy children to their homes. soliciting promises that the gifts would be shared

with their brothers and sisters.

Other recent chapter news is highlighted by the announcement that Phi placed first of the 42 fraternities on campus in scholastic ranking the past semester with a 4.790 house average on Purdue's 6.0 system. This compares with the over-all men's average of 4.360. Also Chapter plans for expansion are bearing fruit with short range plans to rent an annex with a capacity of nine men, bringing housing capacity to 37 for next year. Long range plans call for expanding to one of the larger 42-man fraternity lumnes soon to be vacated as a result of expansion plans by other houses. An alumni board-active chapter expansion meeting this spring should produce a decision along their lines

> JAMES WALTER Corresponding Secretary

#### CHI CHAPTER



The members here at Chi Chapter are now preparing for the upcoming University of Ari-20012 Engineers' Week, March 13 through 18. A majority of the members of the Engineers Council, the organization which sponsors and plans this week,

are Theta Tau members. major events of the week include a tug-of-war with the Aggies, a desert picnic, a knighting cere-mony for graduating seniors, and the Engineers' Ball to close the week's activities on Saturday

night. At our last open meeting, Prof. Don Woods from the Civil Engineering Department gave an excel-lent speech on highway engineering. His talk included slides illustrating both good and bad uses of highway marking.

After one semester, everyone seems pleased with our new house. Our only complaint is that we have no chapter room to hold meetings and store all our files and other chapter equipment. We hope some day to be able to build one adjacent to the present site

On March 5 our Chapter had a party at Mt. Lemmon, which is a nearby mountain ski resort. Due to an unusually dry winter there was no snow to speak of. As luck would have it, it snowed

the day after the party.

The university recently sponsored a kite flying contest which was held in the mall in front of the Student Union Building on campus. Theta Tau member Kane Whistler, under the direction of Regent Cliff Anderson, won the contest. Our prize was a bucket of bubble gum. Once again Theta Tan and the engineers prove to be versatile in their abilities.

> GARY FREDE Corresponding Secretary

## OMEGA CHAPTER

RAPID CITY SD

Omega Chapter of Theta Tau prides itself in its reputation for community service

Parents' Day here at S.D. School of Mines provides an excellent opportunity for helping the school. Omega Chapter does so by serving as guides to

show parents and other visitors through various departments.

We have recently taken part in a new commu-nity service here in Rapid City. It is a city-wide campaign to improve the appearance of Rapid City for the All-American City contest. We are proud to announce that our Chapter won third place in the organization competition by tearing down an old nexty sawdust burner on the edge of town. Week

Always active in National Engineers' Week Omega Chapter helped advertise Engineers' Week Last year, however, our Chapter was instrumental in organizing the program culminating the week

and in obtaining a very good speaker. Omega Chapter has also sponsored and financed a free dance for the student body at the School of Mines. The band was good and the dance was very successful.

DENNIS L. OLMSTEAD Corresponding Secretary

## GAMMA BETA CHAPTER



Gamma Beta has been very active in supporting campus activities both in the School of Engineering and Applied Science and the university as a whole

Our Chapter entered the Interfraternity Council Greek Week games in the chariot races. We didn't win first place, but all the brothers who built and raced the chariot agreed

that it was a lot of fun-

Our Chapter's nominee, Ellen Weber, was elected Engineering Queen for 1966 and through the efforts of Gamma Beta, went on to become the University's Homecoming Queen during the last football season. Largely through the efforts of Gamma Beta, with the financial support of the SEAS alumni association, the Homecoming Queen's float was constructed and won first place in its category. Our currently sponsored girl, Linda Larsen, has been elected as Engineering Oueco for

Last fall we had our annual shrimp feast which turned out to be a hig success. The active brothers, the fall pledge class and some of the alumni joined in football, eating, relaxing and socializing for the

whole day

In an effort to establish better lines of communication between the students and the faculty Brother John Lindsay started a series of small discussion groups. Because of his efforts and those of several of the brothers, our school is again having Open Forums in which all students and faculty are free to speak or ask questions. This has led to a better atmosphere throughout the school.

To help incoming freshmen adjust to college life, the brothers of Gamma Beta are active during Freshman Orientation, not only offering their friendship but also any help needed in selecting courses. In line with this, we have also started a student advisory system conducted by senior class brothers to help supplement the faculty advisory system. We hope that these projects will be of benefit both to the brothers and to the school.

LAWRENCE J. KANTSER Corresponding Secretary A new Theta Tau house in

#### DELTA BETA CHAPTER



moving.

Louisville will soon be a real-By. The new house is much larger than our old one and will increase rooming space by

fifty percent. We will take over occupancy this summer, in the meantime, we are planning the improvements needed before

Again this year much of the work for the school's Engineers' Day was carried on by the Fraternity. Our treasurer served as chairman in the Electrical Engineering Department exhibit while all brothers took part in displays in the other departments as well The Fraternity was solely responsible for one project—the simulation of a stadium card section using a matrix of lights, miles of wire, and relays galore. Theta Tau took charge of all publicity for National Engineers' Week also.

Theta Taus on the school Student Council and University Senate have carried the ball in organizing school-spensored events. We helped with freshman registration and have offered tutoring in

freshman courses.

Theta Tau is helping in preparation for the Miss Louisville Pageant. This involves work, yet gives us a chance to be backstage as well. This year the Chapter took 20 orphans to a U. of L. hallgame. The event was enjoyable for

the children and brothers as well.



Phi Regent Mynhier presented the Past Adviser plaque and an engraved pen set to Dr. Albert Spalding.



Gamma Beta members Larry Kastner, Stacy Deming, and Doug Lowe wait for the gun in the traditional IFC Greek chariot races at George Washington University.



In closing we would like to mention that Prof. Miles G. Northrop, our Chapter Adviser, is retiring in June after many years with school as head of the Electrical Engineering Department. We are grateful for the service he has rendered the Chapter over the years and regret his departure.

HERBERT ANDERSON Corresponding Secretary

#### CT. TTA CHAPTER

accordance with Eta Beta pter's professional developt program, Theta Tsu at the ersity of Houston sponsored v Highways for Communins," presented by Mr. Jim of Southwestern Bell Telee Company. Mr. Sage's ntation was in conjunction stival, Communication in teresting topics discussed or laser beams, micro-wave three-dimensional wrist

the future. Tau has resumed its influa politics with the election I and Brother Charles Hill sgineering senatorial seats ent Association. The third

very eventful spring for seen the acquisition of a use. The two and one-half a spacious living (party) ad adjoining dining room, : family room, and a ga-

th quality spring pledge a needless to say, looking and exciting year. UCENE M. KOLACNY orresponding Secretary

#### CHAPTER the realm of service ac-

s, Iota Beta Chapter is og and growing in all ts of campus life. men of Iota Beta Chapter have participated in several service activities. We set to the tasks

providing Halloween, Thanksgiving, and Christmas cheer to local orphans. Each holiday event consisted of a full day's activities of rides, games, food counseling, and gifts of toys. We also participated in food drives at Thanksgiving and Christmas in cooperation with local churches to help the needy

DETROIT

families of the Detroit area. Professional speakers were sponsored for topics involving "Professional Registration," "Ethics of Engineering," and "Professionalism Today."

An overall expression of fraternal brotherhood

was shown in the Chapter's active participation in the U. of D. Blood Drive. Not only was benefit brought to others outside the Fraternity, but also to the members and their families as being part of the American Red Cross Blood Bank.

In conjunction with our religious activity, the Chapter was treated to an informal discussion before two Jesuit priests on "the New Mocality," only was there a record breaking attendance, but the expressed wish of those present was to have more of the same type of discussions.

Each branch of engineering was represented by someone from lots Bets Chapter during Engineers' Week. The respective engineers supported this week through individual efforts on behalf of their departmental professional organizations.

We also supported as a campus political candi-

date a brother of Iota Beta. We know he is good and we set out to tell others of his merit. Others outside the Fraternity also helped, but it was the perserverence of fraternal brotherhood which gave the greater support to his successful campaign.

Since its establishment in February 1964, lota Beta has been a Chapter of continual growth. We have grown fast. Watch us grow faster

SPENCER J. J. RADIEY Corresponding Secretary

### KAPPA BETA CHAPTER

STARKVILLE MISS.

Service projects have always been stressed at Kappa Beta Chapter and during this school year our Chapter has partici-pated in several noteworthy projects

The Chapter sponsors locally the American Red Cross Blood-

mobile as an anexal project.
Advance publicity is given about the appearance of the Bloodmobile in this area and transportation is provided for those who wish to make donations.

Engineers' Week is one of the highlights of the year for Kappa Beta Chapter and we were active in its support. Publicity was obtained by having announcements of the week placed on the billboards of the local banks and a local motel. Also, it was announced on the local radio station and a short program of the activities of Engineers' Week was shown by a nearby television station. A large banner telling of the week was placed on the YMCA. As is the custom for our Chapter, members served as guides for visiting high school students. As a special project this semester we spon-sored a presentation by Chester B. May from the

National Aeronautics and Space Administration.
The Chapter is proud to announce the crection
of a bulletin board in the main engineering building. This board will be used to post announcements and information of interest to all engineering students as well as to display fraternity publicity.

This spring a group of members will visit various high schools in the state to introduce the students to engineering, to interest them in engineering as a profession, to interest them in Mississippi State University, and to familiarize the students with Theta Tau.

· 51 ·

In closing we would like to mention that Prof. Miles G. Northrop, our Chapter Adviser, is retiring in June after many years with school as head of the Electrical Engineering Department. We are grateful for the service he has cendered the Chapter over the years and regret his departure. HERBERT ANDERSON

Corresponding Secretary

#### ETA BETA CHAPTER



In accordance with Eta Beta Chapter's professional development program, Theta Tau at the University of Houston sponsored New Highways for Communications," presented by Mr. Jim Sage of Southwestern Bell Telephone Company. Mr. Sage's

presentation was in conjunction with our University Festival, Communication in Depth. Among the interesting topics discussed were communication over laser beams, micro-wave transmission, and color three-dimensional wrist

watch type telephones of the future. This semester, Theta Tau has resumed its influential position in campus politics with the election of Brother Ken Wammel and Brother Charles Hill for two of the three engineering senatorial seats

in the University's Student Association. The third engineering seat was filled by a Theta Tan-backed candidate

The highlight of this very eventful spring for Eta Beta Chapter has been the acquisition of a near perfect fraternity house. The two and one-half story, red brick house has a spacious living (party) room with a fireplace and adjoining dining room,

four bedrooms, one large family room, and a garage apartment in back. With a large and high quality spring pledge class, Eta Beta Chapter is, needless to say, looking forward to an eventful and exciting year.

EUGENE M. KOLACNY Corresponding Secretary

#### IOTA BETA CHAPTER



In the realm of service activities, Iota Beta Chapter is moving and growing in all sipects of campus life.
Since the Fall GEAR, the

men of Iota Beta Chapter have participated in several service activities. We set to the tasks of providing Halloween,

Thanksgiving, and Christmas cheer to local orphans. Each holiday event consisted of a full day's activities of rides, games, food counseling, and gifts of toys. We also participated in food drives at Thanksgiving and Christmas in cooperation with local churches to help the needy families of the Detroit area.

Professional speakers were spomored for topics involving "Professional Registration," Ethics of Engineering," and "Professionalism Today."

An overall expression of fraternal brotherhood

was shown in the Chapter's active participation in the U. of D. Blood Drive. Not only was benefit brought to others outside the Praternity, but also to the members and their families as being part of the American Red Cross Blood Bank.

In conjunction with our religious activity, the Chapter was treated to an informal discussion before two Jesuit priests on "the New Morality." only was there a record breaking attendance, but the expressed wish of those present was to have more of the same type of discussions.

Each branch of engineering was represented by someone from Iota Beta Chapter during Engineers' Week. The respective engineers supported this week through individual efforts on behalf of their departmental professional organizations.

We also supported as a campus political candi-

date a brother of Iota Beta. We know he is good and we set out to tell others of his merit. Others putsicle the Fraternity also helped, but it was the perserverence of fraternal brotherhood which gave the greater support to his successful campaign,

Since its establishment in February 1964, lota Beta has been a Chapter of continual growth. We have grown fast. Watch us grow faster.

SPENCER J. J. RADGEY
Corresponding Secretary

## KAPPA BETA CHAPTER



Service projects have always been stressed at Kappa Beta Chapter and during this school year our Chapter has partici-pated in several noteworthy

The Chapter spossors locally the American Red Cross Bloodmobile as an annual project.
Advance publicity is given about the appearance of the Bloodmobile in this

area and transportation is provided for those who wish to make donations.

Engineers' Week is one of the highlights of the year for Kappa Beta Chapter and we were active in its support. Publicity was obtained by having announcements of the week placed on the billboards of the local banks and a local motel. Also, it was announced on the local radio station and a short program of the activities of Engineers' Week was shown by a nearby television station. A large banner telling of the week was placed on the YMCA. As is the custom for our Chapter, memhers served as guides for visiting high school students. As a special project this sensester we spon-sored a presentation by Chester B. May from the National Aeromantics and Space Administration. The Chapter is proud to amounce the erection of a bulletin board in the main engineering build-

ing. This board will be used to post amouncements and information of interest to all engineering students as well as to display fraternity publicity.

This spring a group of members will visit various high schools in the state to introduce the students to engineering, to interest them in engineering as a profession, to interest them in Mississippi State University, and to familiarize the students with Theta Tau.

We are very proud of the aluminum cost of arms and Greek letters which were presented to the Chapter by our fall pledge class. They are now mounted on the front of our chapter house Kappa Beta was ably represented at the national

Convention by our Regent, Robert Webb. Other members of the Fraternity who had planned to attend the Convention were unable to get there. They journeyed all the way to south Tennessee where they saw the first snowflakes of their lives and retreated to the warmer climate of Mississippi However, Brother Webb braved the blizzard and served as chairman of the Constitution and Bylaws

Kanna Beta has had several "Mazola" parties this year and enthusiasm is now growing for our Senior Recognition Banquet which is the high

Senior Recognition Banquet wrach is the num-point of the Chapter's social activities.

Kappa Beta Clapter was recently honored by the visit of Grand Regent Hanes who was on campus recruiting Mississippi State University en-gineers for the Ohio Highway Department.

FREDERICK A. SHEARIN Corresponding Secretary

## Additions to Membership

#### ALPHA CHAPTER

Craig Allen Frane, Minneapolis, Minn. 790 William Frank Micka, Oronoco, Minn. 701 Steven Phillip Ronning, Kenyon, Minn. Brian Walter Schubert, Bochester, Minn.

792

601

## BETA CHAPTER

- Danny Lee Booth, Flint, Mich. James Jerome David Kuhtak, Grand Rapids,
- Michigan Dennis Paul Couturier, Class, Mich. Allen DeKalb Moore, Hinsdale, Ill.
- 980 Thomas Francis Biernat, Detroit, Mich. Mark Eugene Wotell, Worthington, Ohio 981 982
- Clarence Joseph Ehlers II. Escanaba, Mich. 1183 Norbert McGuire, Decutur, Mich
- Poruglas Alan Davies, Niles, Mich. Roger David Mechon, Crystal Falls, Mich. Michael Thomas Sutkowi, Bay City, Mich. 984 98%
- 986 987
- loseph Barney Cyberski, Lansing, Mich. Robert Paul Klenner, Jr., Ballwin, Mo. BRR
- nea John Francis Beaudry, Houghton, Mich. 990 Donald Larry Paulsen, Kalamazoo, Mich. Robert James Oldmison, Westbury, N. Y.

#### GAMMA CHAPTER

- 1068 John Ray Wise, Tulsa, Okla. Guy Gilbert Ray, Rawlins, Wyo. Robert Earle McKee III, Hialeah, Fla.
- Robert Earl Irelan, Denver, Colo
- William Estes Watson, Jr., Estes Park, Colo. James Walter Colzani, Colorado Springs, Colorado
- 1074 Gary John Gehlhoff, Pueblo, Colo. Kenneth Leroy Rutt, Jr., Westminster, Colo.
- Daniel August Siek, Casper, Wyo.
- Rick Gene Avis, Aurora, Colo. David Anthony Noran, Covina, Calif.
- Bruce Austin McKinstry, Craig, Colo. 1050 Verbon Paul Walker, Thornton, Colo.
- 1061 Fred Harland Lightner, Lakewood, Colo. 1082 Jay Alan Spickelmier, Lakewood, Colo.
  - 1083 Thomas Eugene Martin, Denver, Colo.

- 1084 Robert Sterling Glidden, Colorado Springs, Celorado
- 1085 Thomas Warren Johnston, Manitou Springs. Colorado
  - Glenn Clarence Scholling, Jr., Golden, Colo. 1086 Toby Todd Peterson, Cherokee, Iowa

#### DELTA CHAPTER

George Gregory Samitlenko, Cleveland, Ohio 1074 Robert Charles Dolezal, North Royalton,

#### EPSILON CHAPTER

- 875 John Winslow Ballance, Arcadia, Calif.
- Perren Bruce Krowne, San Jose, Calif. Michael John Westall, Glendora, Calif. 877

#### ZETA CHAPTER

- 895 Robert Justice Paulette, Muscatine, Iowa nge Paul Thomas Hetherington, St. Louis, Mo. 697 David Charles Dwyer, Shawnee Mission,
- **FIDIS** Robert Alan Bibb, Shawnee Mission, Kans. 4100 William Edward Ege, Overland Park, Kans.

#### IOTA CHAPTER

- 1046 Donald Bartholomew Lumbert, Granite City,
- 1047 Conrad William Bischof, Webster Groves, Missouri 1048
- Jerry Blane Adams, Oniney, Ill. 1049 1050
- Glemens Paul Drag, St. Joseph, Mo. Richard Allan Damay, Süzesten, Mo. Jerry Keith Fuller, Kansas City, Mo. Richard Eugene Garrett, Rolla, Mo.
- Bichard Eugene Carrett, Rolla, Sto.
  Douglas Eugene Hoeppner, Raytown, Mo.
  Garry Lee January, St. Louis, Mo.
  Michael Joseph Klosterman, St. Louis, Mo.
  John Arthur Munns, Kamus Caty, Mo. 1054
  - Timothy Harrel Neet, Independence, Mo. Robert Michael Nicodemus, Nevada, Mo.
  - Steven William Ohnimus, St. Louix, Mo. 1060
    - Michael Bay Woodruff, Overland, Mo.

#### LAMBDA CHAPTER

Steven Keith Akimoto, Salt Lake City, Utah Lynn Kay Beckstead, Salt Lake City, Utah Bruce Wayne Bentley, Spokane, Wash. Richard Orlin Pausett, Price, Utah Edward Theodore Hikida, Teton City,

887

- Idaho Norman Leon Porter, Vernal, Utah
- Richard Lee Stair, Salt Lake City, Utah 650. 890 John Robert Stephens, Salt Lake City, Utah

#### MU CHAPTER

- James Dow Brown, Bexar, Ala
- Charles Stephen Bonzangi, Mobile, Ala. 883 854 Garald Lloyd Gober, Birmingham, Ala.
- Larry Layne Hudson, Birmingham, Ala. Jefferson Bruce Jones, Tuscaloosa, Ala.
- 887 David Lawrence Nagle, Hustaville, Ala. Larry Michael Sessions, Birmingham, Ala.
- 880 Stephen Spencer Smith, Huntsville, Ala. Matthew Dewitt Thomason III. Birming-
- ham, Ala. Robert Benjamin Thompson, Foley, Ala. William Lonnie Weaver, Jr., Memphis, 892

#### XI CHAPTER

Tennessee

- 296 Thomas Philip Carber, Manitowor, Wis. 297 David Francis Meer, Thiensville, Wis.
- Bruce Frederick Pease, Madison, Wis. Allen Leroy Perkins II, Butler, Wis. 299
- Jon Charles Schladweiler, Elmwood, Wis.
- William Louis Gerard, Bacine, Wis. 300 Victor Herbert Liebe, Stevens Point, Wis.
- William Fredric Pfeiffer, New Holstein, Wis. Arthur Lee Butterworth III, Ashland, Wis.
- 305 Raymond Henry Charles Eisemann, Jr., West Allis, Wisconsin
- David Jerome Quam, Stoughton, Wis. John Mitchell Van Vleet, Jr., Wauwatosa, 300 Wisconsin
- 308 David George Werve, Kenesha, Wis.

#### OMICRON CHAPTER

- Alfred Herbert Beh, Jr., Davenport, Iowa 720 Ronald John Brooks, Coralville, Iowa
- 721 William Thomas Cousins, West Liberty,
- Douglas Alan De Nio, Dows, Iowa Vernon Leroy Garrison, Oclwein, Iowa
- 724 Craig Thomas Herdman, Rockford, Ill.
- Daniel Lee Odem, Kirkville, Iowa James Emery Park, Cedar Rapids, Iowa
- 720 Ben Smith III, Iowa City, Iowa
- Clifford Douglas Stoutner, Keota, Iowa Michael Norman Tyler, Rock Island, Ill. 729
- Ronald K. Wieben, Guttenburg, Iowa Theodore Daniel Worch, Independence,
- Missouri Glenn Frederick Zumbrunnen, Monticello,
- Harlan Dale Holm, Lohrville, Iowa.

#### RHO CHAPTER

- 728 Richard Crafton Chambers, Winston-Salem, North Carolina 220 Edgar Milton Harris, Ir., New London,
- North Carolina 730 Joseph Brent McCombs, Granite Ouarry,
- North Carolina Douglas Hill Sawyer, Winston-Salem, N. C. 730 William Jerry Swain, Southport, N. C. Larry Bernice Thomas, Lillington, N. C.

#### SIGMA CHAPTER

- Dana Jay Griggs, Mendon, Ohio James Robert Hackett, Hubbard, Ohio
- 607 608
- James Robert Hackett, Hubbard, Ohio Thomas Charles Cooper, St. Marys, Ohio Richard Eugene Mallett, Springfield, Ohio Charles Stephen Richter, Thornville, Ohio Phillip Bandall Smith, Columbus, Ohio 600

#### TAU CHAPTER

- Frederick William Boecher, Brooklyn, N. Y. Donald Francis LaRoburdiere, Jr., Parish, 683
- New York 684 George Lawrence Loeffler, Jr., Binghamton, New York
- 685 Leonard Michel Parren, Onconta, N. Y. 888 Kenneth Charles Bousseau, Groton Long Point. Connecticut.
- 887 Stephen Bodney Gottesman, Poughkeepsie, New York FIRE Robert Robson Kaiser, East Sayville, N. Y.

#### UPSILON CHAPTER

- 670 Stephen Howard Freeman, North Little
- Bock, Arkamas Frederick Harold Smith, Hot Springs, Ark.
- Travis Ward Poeter, Stuttgart, Ark Roman Joseph Selig III, Corning, Ark. 673
- James Eldon McAlister, Crossett, Ark. 674
- William Floyd Murphy, Stuttgart, Ark. 675 James Stanley Mattison, DeQueen, Ark. Thomas Harrison Cogburn, Fayetteville, 677
- Arkunsas Richard Whittington Hall, North Little
- Rock, Arkansas 679 Thomas Ice Wright, Little Rock, Ark.

#### PHI CHAPTER

418 John William Lubker II, Seymour, Ind.

#### CHI CHAPTER

- Carl Stephen Clifton, Tucson, Ariz.
- William Havard Gabler, Flushing, N. Y. 718
- Edward Thomas Hartnett, Phoenix, Ariz. Baymond Harry Herzog, St. Paul, Minn.
  - Jeffrey Lynn Patrick, Tucson, Ariz. Karl William Schade, Jr., Safford, Ariz.
  - Daniel Carl Wenger, Quarryville, Fa. John O'Kane Whistler, Bellevue, Wash. 724

#### THE GEAR OF THETA TAU

#### PSI CHAPTER

- 488 Edward Arthur Nordquist, Anaconda, Mont. 489 Henry Arthur Scholz, Vancouver, B. C. 450 Francis Paul Koskimski, Butte, Mont. 491 Terrence Joseph Angove, Butte, Mont.
- 492 Gardar Godfrey Dahl, Jr., Superior, Mont. 403 John Lucas Sutey, Butte, Mont.

#### OMEGA CHAPTER

659 Glenn Darrell French, Canton, S. D. 660 Daniel Thomas Johnson, Watertown, S. D. 661 Michael Charles Pendo, Rapid City, S. D. John Arch Schallenkamp, Huron, S. D. 662

#### GAMMA BETA CHAPTER

- Harrison Powell Butturff, Arlington, Va. Steven Lawrence Holt, Springfield, Va. Lawrence Joseph Kastner, Jr., Alexandria, 403 413.6
- 495 Virginia 496 Sandy Joel Marenberg, Rockville, Md. 497 Douglas Miel Taylor, Silver Spring, Md.

### DELTA BETA CHAPTER

416 John Hammond Stivers, Owensboro, Ky.

#### EPSILON BETA CHAPTER

- TOG Michael Joseph Nagy, Lincoln Park, Mich.
- 100 Mark Frank Weberman, Detroit, Mich.
- 200 Jack Bay Carnahan, Warren, Mich. 201 Wolodymyr Cruhatyi, Hamtramck, Mich.
- 202 Paul Zoltan Kess, Lincoln Park, Mich. 203 Dale Allen Kolody, Southfield, Mich.
- 204 Antonio Sammut, Dearborn, Mich. 205 Theodore Stanley Sandel, Detroit, Mich.

#### ETA BETA CHAPTER

116 Robert Sheridan Black, Houston, Tex. 117 Billy Mack Castleberry, Bellaice, Tex.

- Richard Allan Finn, Houston, Tex. 118 119
- Eugene Michael Kolacny, Houston, Tex. George Everette Odell, Houston, Tex. Dunald Hugh Plank, Houston, Tex. Bonald James Upchurch, Houston, Tex.

#### THETA BETA CHAPTER

48 Gerard Ernest Entrop. Seattle, Wash 49 Craig Dennis Puhrmann, Puyallup, Wash.

#### IOTA BETA CHAPTER

- 95 Francis Michael Joseph Ferraro, Buffalo,
- Thomas Joseph Hemak, Chicago, Ill. Lawrence Nicholas Canjar (Honorary), De-
- troit, Michigan Bobert Ignatius Beckmann, Delphos, Ohio 98
- 99 Paul Michael Christopher Boros, Lyndhurst. Illinois
- 100 101 102
- Hillions Kevin James Cahill, Wyoming, Ill. James Thomas Davy, Oak Park, Ill. John Robert Duffy, Aurora, Ill. Robert Bernaril Laule, Jr., Columbia Station, Ohio

#### KAPPA BETA CHAPTER

- Robert Edward Gewin, Jackson, Miss. 64 65
- John Beaman Noblin, Jackson, Miss. Richard Stanley Walker, Starkville, Miss.
- John Richard Underwood III, Guntown,
- Mississippi Ronald Webb McClendon, Brandon, Miss. 68
- eth. Frank Lokey McCollum, Clinton, Miss. David Lehmann Guice, Starkville, Miss.
- David Lehmann Guice, Starkville, Miss. Bobert Alfred Novak, Jr., Gulfport, Miss. James Darrell Hare, Corioth, Miss. Nowell Edgar Rush, Vickoburg, Miss. John Madison Coleman Floyd, Sallis, Miss. 72
- 74
- 75 Clifton Earl Groves, Greenville, Miss. 76 Clarence Odell Tyler, Jr., Jackson, Miss. 77 John Dowe Matthews, Jackson, Miss.
- 78 Thomas Lloyd Dahl, Memphis, Tenn.

#### IMPORTANT NOTICE TO ALUMNI

Beginning with the Fall 1963 issue of THE GEAR, we modified our policy for those alumni who move without notifying THE GEAR office of their new mailing addresses. If your GEAR is returned to us with a new address written on it, we will automatically place you on the mailing list for the next issue. If a returned GEAR has no forwarding address on it, we will seek your current address by first class letter. Because of the high postal rates, we will not remail the current issue to you as in the past. In all cases we will attempt to keep you on the mailing list.



## Theta Tau Directory

Theta Tau Fraternity was founded at the University of Minnesota, Minnesota, Minnesota, on October 15, 1904, by:

ERICH J. SCHRADER

ELWIS L. VINAL, 4039 West Mercer Way, Mercer Island, Washington 98040 WILLIAM M. LEWIS, 33 Filgrim Lane, Drexel Hill, Pennsylvania 19026 ISAAC B. HANKS, 2120 Northwest Boulevard, Spokane, Washington 99205

#### PAST GRAND REGENTS

ERICH I. SCHBADER, Alpha, (1904-1919)\*

ERICH J. SCHBADER, AIDRG. (1904-1910)
GEORGE D. LOCHERBACE, ÉPHÎGO. (1919-1925)
J. SINGEY MARINE, ER. (1925-1927), 45 Popham
Road, Scardale, New York 10383
RICHARD J. RUSSELL (Dr.), Epiden, (1927-1931),
4573 Highland Rd., Baton Rouge, La. 70808
FRID COTYMAN, Lambda, (1931-1935)

HEROXAN H. HOPKINS, Beta, (1935-1937), 3320 Culver Avenue, Evanston, Illinois 00201 JOHN M. DANDES (Dn.), Nu Homorary, (1937-1939), 350 Finewood Lane & Cole Boad, Sarver, Pennsylvania 16055

RUSSELL G. GLASS, Sigma; (1939-1946), Saddle-back Lane, Gates Mills, Ohio 44040

RALPH W. NUSSER, Zetz, (1946-1948), 609 West Dartmouth, Kansas City, Missouri 64113 NORMAN B. AMES. Gamma Beta. (1948-1950)\* DONALD D. CURTIS, Omicron Honorary, (1950-

Jameson Vawter, Zeto, (1952-1954)\* A. DENTER HINCKLEY, Theta, (1954-1958), 90 Morningside Drive, New York, N. Y. 10027

CHARLES W. BEITZEUS, Alphu, (1958-1962), 662 Cromwell Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota 55114 WILLIAM K. REY (PROP.), Mu, (1962-1966), P.O. Box 664, University, Alabama 35486

\* Deceased

		EXECU	JTIVE	CO	UNC	н
m.	Basemon.	Hanne		TOUR.	Post I	٧.

GRAND RECENT O minion Blvd., Celumbus, Obio 43214 409 W. Stadium, West Lafayette, Indiana 47906 GRAND VICE REGENT C. E. WALES (Dr.) \_\_\_\_ GRAND SCRIBE ROBERT E. POPE 13 Sona Lane, Saint Louis, Missouri 63141 GRAND TREASURER CHARLES W. BRITISIUS ... 662 Cromwell Ave., St. Paul, Minnesota 55114 GRAND MARSHAL RICHARD LYNCH ...... West Lafayette Towers, Apr. 1804, Detroit, Michigan 48207 GRAND INNER GUARD JAY N. THORPE 5208-119th Ave., S.E., Bellevue, Washington 98004 GRAND OUTER GUARD Grosce G. Done (Ds.) 29451 Canningham Drive, Warren, Michigan 48662

#### DELEGATE-AT-LARGE

PAST GRAND REGENT WILLIAM K. REV (PROF.) P. O. Box 664, University, Alabama 35486

#### CENTRAL OFFICE

ROBERT E. POPE, Executive Secretary 13 Sona Lane, Saint Lunix, Missouri 63141

#### REGIONAL DIRECTORS

NORTHERN JAMES L. REYNOLDS, Mechanical Engineering Department, University of Minnesota, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55455 (Alpha, Beta, Xi, Omicron)

The Trane Co., 2257 Highland Avenue, Birmingham, SOUTHERN FIED E. ARMSTRONG, JR. Alabama 35205 (Zeta, Iota, Mu, Upsilon, Eta Beta, Kappa Beta) LAWRENCE F. FELDSUS, Battelle Memorial Institute, 505 King Ave., Columbus, Obio 43214 CENTRAL

(Delta, Sigma, Phi, Delta Beta, Epulon Beta, Iota Beta) JORN M. DEALY (Dr.), Department of Chemical Engineering, McGill University, Mon-EASTERN

treal 2, Quebec, Canada (Theta, Pi, Rho, Tau, Garoma Beta) 2011 Bryan Avenue, Salt Lake City, Utah 84108 WESTERN GARS HATCH (Camma, Epsilan, Lambda, Chi, Psi, Omega, Zeta Beta, Theta Beta)

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS 545 Mount Curve Boulevard, St. Paul, Minnesota 55116 ARCHIVIST MILTON S. WUNDBLICH SPECIAL REPRESENTATIVE FOR CALIFORNIA Jacx E. Payne, 2245 Lanai Avenue, Apt. 60, San Jose, California 95122

#### THE GEAR OF THETA TAU

Founded October 15, 1904

Established March 26, 1906

Established November 8, 1907

Established May 23, 1911

Established May 4, 1911

Established April 17, 1912

ALPHA

BETA

CAMMA

DELTA

**EPSILON** 

ZETA

#### CHAPTERS AND CHAPTER ADVISERS

515 Tenth Avenue, S. E., Minneapolis, Minneapolis 55414\*

Adviser: HERMAN E. GOLLWITZER, 2857 Domain Avenue, Minneapolis, Minn. 55406

U. S. Highway 41, Houghton, Michigan 49931\*

Adviner: Pnor. Harway, Mechanical Engineering Department, Michigan Technological University, Houghton, Michigan 49931

Box 134, Colorado School of Mines, Golden, Colorado 80401 Adeiner: Ds. L. W. Lzilov, Department of Geology, Colorado School of Mines, Golden, Colorado Sobi01

Theta Tau Box, Case Institute of Technology, Cleveland, Ohio 44106
Advisor: Da. Rosser H. Scascas, Department of Engineering Mechanics, Case
Institute of Technology, Cleveland, Ohio 44106

Theta Tau, Engineering Research Services Building, University of California, Berkeley, California 94720

Adviner: Dn. James M. Carman, School of Business Administration, University of California, Berkeley, California 94704

1602 Louisiana Street, Lawrence, Karosa 66044\*

Adeiser: Prof. Frederick H. C. Smithetyra, 2130 Owens Lane, Lawrence, Karosa 66044

University of Minnesota

Colorado School of Mines

Case Institute of Technology

University of California

University of Kansas

Michigan Technological University

THETA	Established May 26, 1914 Columbia University
insia	c/o Dean's Office, School of Engineering, Columbia University, New York, New York 10027
	Adviser: Dr. Elmer L. Garen, Department of Chemical Engineering, Columbia University, New York, New York 10027
IOTA	Established February 5, 1916 University of Missouri at Rolla Student Union, University of Missouri at Rolla, Rolla, Missouri 65401 Adeiser. Proc. Frank J. Capra, Civil Engineering Department, University of Missouri at Rolla, Rolla, Missouri 65401
LAMBDA	Established April 29, 1920 University of Utah, Salt Lake City, Utah 84112 Adviser: Paor, Pinscrow D. Livroine, Civil Engineering Department, University of Utah, Salt Lake City, Utah 84112
MU	Established January 3, 1922 University of Alabama 300 Thomas Street, Tuscaloosa, Alabama 35401*
XI	Adviser: Prov. William K. Rey, P. O. Box 664, University, Alahama 33486 Established January 13, 1923 University of Wiscunsin 1633 Montree Street, Madison, Wisconsin 53711* Adviser: Dn. Jones W. Mirchiell, Department of Mechanical Engineering, University
OMICBON	of Waconin, Madison, Waconin 57706 Established February 3, 1923 Theta Tas Box, Engineering Budding, Iowa City, Iowa 52240 Adiciser: Dr. Donana H. Mastose, Engineering Budding, Iowa City, Iowa 52240
PI	Established May 26, 1923 University of Virginia Thornton Hall, University of Virginia Charlotteaville, Virginia 22903 Adraiser. Dn. Genosc. B. MATTHEWS, Department of Aerostace Engineering, University of Virginia Charlotteaville, Virginia 22903
вно	Established February 16, 1924 North Carolina State University at Raleigh F. O. Box 5282, State College Station, Raleigh, North Carolina 27607 Advisor: Dn. Formus W. Lancaviria, P. O. Box 5387, State College Station, Raleigh, North Carolina 27607
SIGMA	Established November 29, 1924 Ohio State University 1946 Indianola Avenue, Columbus, Ohio 3201* Addison The Research Decoupant of Floring Franciscing Ohio

State University, Columbus, Ohio 43210

	SPRENG 1967
TAU	Established December 12, 1925 Syracuse University
	707 Livingston Avenue, Syracuse, New York 13210*  Advisor: Proc. Carson P. Buck, Associate Dean, College of Engineering, Syracuse
UPSILON	University, Syracuse, New York 13210  Established April 7, 1928  University of Arkansas
	763 West Dickson Street, Fayetheville, Arkansan 72701* Adviser: Prov. Jos. F. Akes, Mechanical Engineering Department, University of Arkansan, Fayetheville, Arkansan 72701
PHI	Established April 21, 1928 Purdue University 416 North Chauncey Avenue, West Lafayette, Indiana 47906*
	Adviser: Pror. Joseph C. Oppenlander, Department of Civil Engineering, Purdue University, West Lafayette, Indiana 47906
CHI	Established April 23, 1930 University of Arizona 1614 East Speedway Boulevard, Tucson, Arizona 85719*
	Adeiser Phor. Phillip B. Newlin, Civil Engineering Department, University of Arizona, Tucson, Arizona 85719
PSI	Established May 7, 1932 Montana College of Mineral Science & Technology Theta Tais, Residence Hall, Montana College of Mineral Science & Technology, Butte, Montana 59701
	Adviser: Prov. William J. Van Matrie, Department of Mining Engineering, Montana College of Mineral Science & Technology, Butte, Montana 59701
OMEGA	Established March 26, 1932 South Dakota School of Mines and Technology 107 Kansas City Street, Rapid City, South Dakota 57701*
	Adviser: Prov. George D. O'CLOCK, Jr., Apt. 19, 122 Locke Road, Rapid City, South Dakota 57701
GAMMA BETA	Established March 16, 1935 The George Washington University Theta Tau, Davis-Hodgkins House, 731 - 22nd Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20006 Advisor:
DELTA BETA	Established May 20, 1939 University of Louisville 2022 South First Street, Louisville, Kentucky 40208*
	Adviser: Proc. Milks G. Northboy, Electrical Engineering Department, University of Louisville, Louisville, Kentucky 40208
EPSILON BETA	Established May 19, 1951 Wayne State University 1200 West Hancock, Detroit, Michigan 48201*
	Advisor: Dr. Hardle G. Donnerla, Chemical and Metallurgical Engineering De- partment, Wayne State University, Detroit, Michigan 48201
ZETA BETA	Established May 7, 1960 Utah State University Box 254, Union Building, Utah State University, Logan, Utah 84321 Adviser:
ETA BETA	Established May 13, 1961 University of Houston
	Cullen College of Engineering, University of Houston, 3801 Cullen Boulevard, Houston, Texas 77004
	Adviser: PROF. WILLIAM J. LEACH, Assistant Dean, College of Engineering, University of Houston, Houston, Texas 77004
THETA BETA	Established March 2, 1963 University of Washington Box 171, Student Union Building, University of Washington, Seattle, Wash, 18105 Africaer Paor, W. B. Boxoow, 5810 - 10th N.E., Seattle, Washington 98105
IOTA BETA	Established February 15, 1964 University of Detroit, Detroit, Michigan 48221
	Adelier: Dr. Lawrence N. Casjan, Dean of Engineering, University of Detroit, Detroit, Michigan 48221
KAPPA BETA	Established November 21, 1964 Mississippi State University 200 Hillside Drive, Starkville, Mississippi 39759*
	Adrisor: Franklin M. Ingels, P. O. Box 2007, State College, Mississippi 39762 COLONY
all the sale	Coneral Motors Institute

Flint, Michigan 48502 Advisor: Phus. James B. Bay, 3202 Brisrwood Drive, Flint, Michigan 48507

GMI

Certified September 25, 1965 General Motors Institute, 1700 West 3rd Avenue.

General Motors Institute

#### INTERIM COMMITTEES, 1967-1968

ALIMNI AFFAIRS—Dp. Crisates E. Walzs, Cheirman, 409 West Stellum, West Lafsyrth, Endiana 47096, Cam. Comova, 763 West Dickon Street, Fryetteelle, Adamas 27201, Joss Ha-KALA, 20218 Winterset, Mt. Clement, Michigan 49045; Jav N. Tomer, 5230—11904 Acense, SE, Bellevic, Wathington 69004; Laos M. Vex, Ja, 1437 Beaumont Dr., Moedgomery, Ads. 36100 CONSTITUTION REVISION—Da. Jones M. Deatz, Cheirman, Department of Chemical Engi-

1941 beaumont Dr., Montgomery, Ah. 20106 CONSTITUTION REVISION—Dis. Jones M. DEALY, Chairman, Department of Chemical Engineering, McGill University, Montreal 2, Quebec, Canada CONVENTION PLANNING—ROBERT E. POPE, Chairman, 13 Sona Lane, St. Louis, Missouri 63141

CURRICULAR ELIGIBILITY—DR. CHARLES E. WALES, Chairman, 409 West Stadium, West Lafay-

ette, Indiana 47906 EXTENSION—ROBERT E. Pors, Chairman, 13 Sona Laue, Saint Louis, Misseuri 63141; Jav N. Tunders, 5208—119th Avenne, S.E., Bellevue,

VISANIQUII SOCIALES W. BRITZIUS, Chalirman, 602 Cromwell Avenue, Saint Faul, Minn. 55114; BUSSEL G. CLASS, Soldbelack Lane, Gates Mills, Obio 46040, PAUL L. MERCER, P. O. BOX 457, Keuluk, Jones 25032. HISTORY—De. JORE M. DEATY, Chairman, Department of Chemical Engineering, Kell University, Montreal Z. Quebec, Canada; Joseps F. Monzzo, 234 Earl Johnson Street, Apt. 6, Madchanical Engineering Department, University of Minnescia, Minneapolis, Minnescio 55455, Dencary D. Zecz, 4817 Sheboygan Avenue, Apt. 601, Mailson, Wisconian 53705.

LONG RANGE PLANNING—PROF. WILLIAM K. RIX., Chairman, P. O. Den 648, University, Alabama 35486; Dis. Jours M. Dealy, Department of Chemical Engineering, McGill University, Montreal 2, Quebec, Canada; C. RAMOND HACKS, 581, East Denninium Bled, Columbus, Olioi 42214; Rossew E. Fores, 13 Sens Lane, St. Lonis, Missouri West Lafavette, Indiana 4799, 609 Weet Staffund, West Lafavette, Indiana 4799, 609 Weet Staffund,

REGIONAL CONFERENCES—Ds. George G. Dozo, Chairman, 29451 Canningham Drive, Warren, Michigan 48092

RITUAL REVISION—Dn. George G. Doon, Chairman, 29451 Cunningham Drive, Warren, Michigan 48092

#### PRESIDENTS AND SECRETARIES OF ALUMNI ASSOCIATIONS

ABKANSAS (Club) JOSEPH W. GILLESPIE, President, P. O. Box 231, El Dorado, Ark 71731 CAU. GIBBONS, Secretary, 763 West Dickson, Fayetteville, Arkansus 72701

CENTRAL JAMES ANDERSON, Fresident, 54 East Royal Forest Blvd., Columbus, Ohio 43214 CENTRAL FLORIDA (Clob) GORDON DAYBON.

President, 1324 Buena Vista Avenue, Orlando, Florida 32808 Joszen C. Spencera, Jr., Secretary, 1204 Quintilian Avenue, Orlando, Florida 32809

CHICAGO ALF T. Swasson, President, 479 Winchester Road, Chicago Heights, Ill. 60411

CLEVELAND JAMES R. McKINSKY, President, 3853 Kirkwood Band, Cleveland, Ohio 44121 Calvin Dalton, Secretary, The Arcade, Cleveland, Ohio 44114

DETROIT Harlan F. Worden, President, 10434 Vernon, Huntington Woods, Michigan 48070 Roment Laconoxy, Secretary, 5528 Lakewood, Detroit, Michigan 48213

INTERMOUNTAIN ALTON H. SORENSON, JR., President, 3478 South 3125 East, Salt Lake City, Utah 84109 G. COURTNEY CAMPULL, Secretary, 1655 Blaine

Avenue, Salt Lake City, Utah 84105

KANSAS CITY THOMAS W. DOMENLE, President,

5032 North Oak Street, Apt. 334, Kassas City, Missouri 64118 ETROPOLITAN NEW YORK Don MACLARES.

METROPOLITAN NEW YORK DOW MACLARIN, President, 994 Oakland Avenue, Plainfield, New Jersey 07060 JOSEPH R. McCormick, Treasurer, 243 West Hazelwood Avenue, Rahway, N. J. 07065

NATIONAL CAPITAL PAUL KUZIO, President, 3601 Van Ness Street, N.W., Wathington, D.C. 20008 HERBERT S. WILKINSON, Secretary, 1317 Wood-

side Parkway, Silver Spring, Maryland 20010 NORTH ALABAMA (Club) PHILLIP J. PENCHA, President, 5605 Noble Circle, Huntsville, Ala-

hama 35802
Changas H. Haskew, Secretary, 10011 Willow Park Drive, Huntsville, Alabama 35803

PACIFIC NORTHWEST J. DELVIN ARMSTRONG, President, 16504 N.E. 13th, Bellevue, Washington 98004

RONALD C. ZENTNER, Secretary, 6247 Palatine Avenue North, Seattle, Washington 98105 SOUTHWESTERN PLYER M. MOSER, JR., Presi-

dent, 5542 East Burns Street, Tucson, Arizona 85711 ALBERT E. HAMILTON, Scoretary, 4808 East Belle-

vue Avenue, Tucson, Arizona 85716
TWIN CITY JAMES W. FARICY, President, 826
West Iowa, St. Paul, Minnesota 55106

GARY LAMUNT, Secretary, 1005 - 50th N.E., Minneapolis, Minnesota 55421 WISCONSIN (Club) EDWARD P. WILKOMMUN,

President, 2539 North 72 Street, Waswatosa, Wisconin 53213 Joseph F. Movizzo, Secretary, 324 East Johnson Street, Apt. 6, Madison, Wisconsin 53763

### ALUMNI NEWS

lame	Chapter	Class
	- Transition	
ddress		
lews of yourself and/or other		
sews or yoursest analyte other		
NOTIC	E OF DECEASED ME	MBER
lease give as complete inform	ation as possible, including biogra-	phical data known, clippings,
tc. Send to THE GEAR OF THE	TA TAU, 7421 Village Drive, Prairie	Village, Kansas 66208.
		Class
Same	Chapter	Year
ddress		
Date and place of death		
Same and address of nearest r	elative	
Seported by	- Chu	pter
ddress		
Selationship to deceased		
REC	COMMENDED STUDEN	TTS
Mail to Robert E. Pope, E. nelude relatives and other rec lau yet has a chapter at that s	secutive Secretary, 13 Sona Lane ommended students at accredited a chool.	, St. Louis, Missouri 63141. chools whether or not Theta
	wing student(s) in engineering b	e considered for Theta Tau
Name	School	
failing Address		Major
7 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 12 - 1	Exected Conduction	n Date
	Expected Graduation	Date

### CHANGE OF ADDRESS NOTICE

46.77	Charles .	Class
Old address:	Chapter	Year
Street		
City	State	ZIP Code
New address:		
Street		
City	State	ZIP Code
Permanent address from which		
Street		
City	State	ZIP Code
NOTICE	OF ALUMNUS AD	DRESS
Send names and addresses of any	about you know who may	not be receiving Top Gran to
Sent names and addresses of any THE GEAR OF THETA TAU, 7421 Vil		
Ann Service America, Army Astron. Lan		
Name	Chapter	Class Year
Street		
City	State	ZIP Code
Reported by	Chartes	Class Year
	Complete	1 car
Street		
City	State	ZIP Code
Be sure the Theta Taus you know	are receiving THE GEAR.	
***************************************		***************************************
	TS TO THETA TA	U
GIF		
GIF  Make checks payable to Theta	Tau Fraternity and mail	to Robert E. Pope, Executive
Make checks payable to Theta		to Robert E. Pope, Executive
Make checks payable to Theta Secretary, 13 Sona Lane, St. Louis	, Missouri 63141.	to Robert E. Pope, Executive
Make checks payable to Theta Secretary, 13 Sona Lane, St. Louis I enclose the following contribution	, Missouri 63141.	to Robert E. Pope, Executive
Make checks payable to Theta Secretary, 13 Sona Lane, St. Louis	, Missouri 63141.	to Robert E. Pope, Executive
Make checks payable to Theta Secretary, 13 Sona Lane, St. Louir I enclose the following contribution As an unrestricted gift	, Missouri 63141. a to Theta Tau:	to Robert E. Pope, Esecutive
Make checks payable to Theta Secretary, 13 Sona Lane, St. Louis I enclose the following contribution	, Missouri 63141. a to Theta Tau:	to Robert E. Pope, Esecutive
Make checks payable to Theta Secretary, 13 Sona Lane, St. Louit I enclose the following contribution As an unrestricted gift For the Founders' Memorial I	, Missouri 63141. a to Theta Tau: \$  und \$	Class
Make checks payable to Theta Secretary, 13 Sona Lane, St. Louit I enclose the following contribution As an unrestricted gift For the Founders' Memorial I	, Missouri 63141. a to Theta Tau:	
Make checks payable to Theta Secretary, 13 Sona Lane, St. Louit I enclose the following contribution As an unrestricted gift For the Founders' Memorial I	, Missouri 63141. a to Theta Tau: \$  und \$	Class

## Homes and Hotels

Most social fraternities and sororities provide housing for their membership on the college campus. So do about one-half of the Theta Tau chapters (actually it's 15 out of 29) now and the proportion is growing each year. From time to time we should examine why the Greek letter world does this and what purpose it serves.

Today on the college campus the student can live in a nice dormitory or in private housing and have very adequate facilities for housing, food, study, and other activity. All this is provided institutionally so that few students need to care why or who provides the housing and management. The old chapter house is usually in need of repair, on the verge of insolvency, and must be managed by a group of busy alumni and the student membership actually living in the house. There are usually problems aplenty keeping the place going and in good repair. Major renovation of chapter housing or building a new house call for infusions of capital and manpower from a diverse, poorly organized group.

On the surface there seems to be little reason for fraternities to continue to fight the battle in the face of well financed and professionally organized housing now available on most campuses. But they do and the reasons have little to do with providing housing as a service to the university or the chapter membership. Brick and mortar are no more "the fraternity" than they are the church, the school, or the home; but they are a place where the members can come together to carry out the purposes of the Fraternity-to develop and maintain a high standard of professional interest among its members, and to unite them in a strong bond of fraternal fellowship.

It's like contrasting the family home with a large hotel—they serve different purposes. Few of us would choose to live in a hotel when we can have a home.

It is in small group living and working together that members pursue best the purposes of the Fraternity. The individual is given status by those he lives with. At the same time the development of the individual person is a measure of the effectiveness of a living group which seeks to carry out the purposes of the Fraternity. Those who live together take something away from college and the Fraternity not available in "institutional" group living. The sociologist or psychologist might speak in terms of "interaction" or "group dynamics." However it is expressed the result for an individual man comes out this way: lifetime friendships. fraternal fellowship, leadership training, character development, professional development. All of this can occur when men of purpose choose to live as a group. It's hard to develop these "dividends" to a college education when the purpose of housing is only to provide room, board, and study facilities. To the Fraternity the house is a vehicle to more lofty purposes and as long as these dividends come out of the fraternity house, it will continue to exist and serve the membership.-WEF

#### LET OTHERS KNOW YOU'RE A THETA TAU!

THETA TAUL	
The following items are available for Central Office:	rom: the
Replacement shingle (membership certificate)	-91.25
flook matches with full color coat of ar Box of 50	3.00
Ten boses Ball point pen with Theta Tau imprint	9,50
Black plastic pertfolio with Theta Tau	1.00
Coat of arms decal Greek letter decal (package of two)	0.10
Payment should accompany order sen	t to the

THE GEAR OF THETA TAU 7421 Village Drive Prairie Village, Kansas 66208 RETURN POSTAGE GUBRA WTEEP APPRESS CORRECTION REQUESTED - 154

Non-Profit **Bulk Rate** U.S. POSTAGE PAID Lawrence, Kansas Permit No. 116



Robert E. Pope Z 539 13 Sona Lane Saint Louis 41, Missouri 691h1

# JEWELRY AVAILABLE THROUGH CENTRAL OFFICE



8 1.00
1.25
1.25
0.75
1.00
1.25
12.25
13.75
9.50
13.00
3.50
5.50
7.25
1.75
2.00
3.75
18.00

Prices do not include state and local sales and tine faces.

\* Official jewelry may be ordered only through the Theta Tau Central Office, 13 Sons Lase, St. Louis, Missouri 63141.